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| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORSG6 REPORT

The Board of Directors arghareholders
China Airlines, Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompary financial statements @hina Airlines, Ltd(t he A C9d,mpany o
which comprise the balance sheets as of DecembeR@®P and 2021 and the statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting pojiméectively referred

to as t heatefefniy.rsadnci al st

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position ofthe Company as of December 32022 and 2021 and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then endeaicordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers

Basis for Opinion

We conduatd our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation

of Financial Steements by Certified Pulal Accountants andhe Standards on Auditing of the

Republic of ChinaOur responsibilities under those standards are furtherideserd i n t he Aud
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements seofionr report. We are dependent

of the Company in accordance with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public
Accountant of the Republic of China, and wevdndulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirementse \Believe that the audi#vidence we hve obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those tteas that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of theihancial statements fohe year endedecember 31, Z2. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and ig fmrmin
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter in the audif the Compap 6 s f i nanci al statements i s s

Recognition of Cargo Revenue

I n accordance with | FRS 1bstiRmerss&ie darmngno Coalt &
for as cargo revenue after relevant transportaemices have been proedl For the gar ended

December 31, 2@ cargo revenue amounted to $I15,864,041thousand. Refer to Notes 4 and

25 to the accompanying finaiat statements for detailed information.



Cargo rates are highly affected by the supghyl demand of the markahd sales caonly be
recognized after relevant transportation services awmviged The input, processing and
maintenance of freight inforrtian on theairway billsinvolve manual operations. Therefore, we
identified the recogtion of cargo revenue askey audit natter.

Our main audit procedures performed included the following

1. We understood the internal controls related to the retiognof cargorevenue including
manual and automatic contsol

2. We understood and tested #féectiveness athe informaion system related to the recognition
of cargo revenue.

3. We sampled theairway bills confirmed that cargo rates were consistgith those stated in
airway bills and verified the amount of cargo revenue.

Other Matter - Audited by Other Independent Auditors

The financial statements of some investments accountedsiieg the equity method in Note 1
were audited byther indepadent auditors, and our audit opinion is based solely on the reports of
other auditors. As of Decdrar 31,2022 and 2021the aforementioned investments accounted for
using the equity methodnmunted to N¥725,747 thousand and NT$2,955,909 thousand,
repregnting0.27 and1.09%of the total assetsrespectively For the yearended December 31,
2022 and 2021the combined share 6 profit (los§ and other comprehensivecome (os9 of
subsidiaies, asociates and joint venturexcounted for using the equitnethodamountd to
NT$(2,230,169 thousandand NT$(1,739,029 thousand representing/61.226 and (18.44%) of

the total compehensive incomeaespectiely.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged witBovernance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responséfor the preparation and fair presentation of the financial retés in
accordance withhie Regulatios Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers, and for suchmternal control as management determinesi@sessary to enabldnet
preparation of financial statements that are free from mateigdtatement, whether due fraud

or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assebs;lg Company 6 s
ability to continue as a gainconcern, disclosingas applicable, matters related to going concern

and using the gog concern basis of acastling unlessmanagement either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or haseabstic alternative but to do so.

Those clrged with governan¢éncluding the audit committeeare responsibleof overseeing the
Company6s frtinqpsonessi a | repo

Auditorsd6 Responsibilities for the Audit of t he

Our objecties are to obtain reasonable assurance atimether the financiadtatements as a whole

are free from material misgement, whether due to fraud or errorgdd@o issuem audi t or s 6 r ¢
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leasduwfince, but is not a guarantee

that an adit conducted in acedance withthe Standards on Auditing of the Republic of Chiik

always atect a material misstatemamhen it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error

and are onsidered material if, individually or in the aggregateytbeud reasonably be expected

to influence the economidecisions of users taken on the basthege financial statements.



As part of an audit in accordance witie Standards on Auditing of the Republic of Chine
exercise professionaldgment andnaintain professional skepticism thrdwogit the audit. We also:

1. Identify andassess the risks of material misstatemenh®effinancial statements, whether due
to fraud or errg design and perform audit procedures responsive to those aiskxbtai
audit evidence that is sufficient aagpropriate to provide a basis for ourrdpn. The risk of
not detecting a materialisstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for resalting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgemtentionalomissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

2. Obtain anunderstanding of internal control relevawot the audit in order to design audit
procedures thatra appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposepodssingan
opinion on the effectiveness ofthe@pany és i nternal contr ol

3. Evaluate te appropriateness of accounting policiesdusmad the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and la&ted disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the apprdpteness o management 6s us e basik oft he g«
accounting and, based on the awliidence obtained, whether a material utaiety exists
related to events or conditions that naya s t significant doubt on t
continue as going corern. If we conclude that a material en@inty exists, we are required
todrawa t ent i on i n our daddisclosaressindhe finaneial statements ort he r
if suchdisclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conousice basd on the
audit evidence obtained up tohe date of our a ufwturetements 6r r epor
conditions may cause the@pany to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evduate the overall presentation, structure and content of thecfalsstaements, including
the disclosures, andhether the financial statements represkatunderlying transactions and
events in ananner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain suficientandappropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infoomadf entities
or business activities withithe Company to express an opinion on fihancial statements.
We are responsibléor the direction, supervision and performance of thetaWde remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We commuicate withthose charged with governance regardamong other matters, the planned
scope ad timing of the audit and significant ditifindings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provid those chrged with governance with a statemdmttwe have complied with
relevant ethicalrequirements regarding independence, d@adcommunicate with them all
relationships and other mats that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independadce, a
where @plicable, related safeguards.

From thematters communicated with those chargethwgovernance, we determine those matter

that were of most significance in the audit of the feiahstatements for the year ended December

31, 2@2 and are thefore thekey audit matters. We describe thesetmatr s i n our audi t
unless law orregulation precludes public disclosureod the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstancesywe determine that a matter should not be communicated in out tgE@ausehe

adverse consequences of doing salaeasonably be expected to outweigh plblic interest

benefits of such commuraion.



The engagement partners on the audisultingi n t hi s i ndependKuatHacaudi t or
Leeand ShiurRRanCheng.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

March 9, 2023

Notice to Readers

The acomompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position,
financial performance and cashofls in accorcance with accounting principles and praeic
generally accepted in the Repubdtif China and not those of any otherigdictions. The standards,
procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those generally applied in the
Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers,themd ependent au diatccampanying finangiar t an
statements havegeentranslated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used

in the Republic of China. If there is angndlict between the English version and the original

Chinese version or any difference iretinterpretation of the two versionsetiChnese-language
independent auditorsodé report and financial st at



CHINA AIRLINES, LTD.

BALANCE SHEET S
DECEMBER 31, 2022AND 2021
(In Thousands ofNew Taiwan Dollars)

2022 2021
ASSETS Amount % Amount %
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4, 6 and 29) $ 27,492,827 10 $ 35,913,117 13
Financial assets at amortizedst- current (Notes 4, 8 and 29) 4,764,601 2 11,923,194 5
Financial assets for hedgirgurrent (Notes 4, 6 and 29) 4,031,662 2 3,563,319 1
Notes and accounts receivalief (Notes 4, 10 and 29) 10,529,664 4 12,990,399 5
Notes and accounts receivablelated parties (Note 30) 130,678 - 54,474 -
Other receivables 709,962 - 543,768 -
Current tax assets (Notes 4 and 26) - - 52,282 -
Inventories (Notes 4nd 10) 10,568,039 4 8,380,327 3
Non-current assets held for sale (Notes 4 and 11) - - 36,719 -
Other current assets (Note 16) 1,308,812 - 389,191 -
Total current assets 59,536,245 22 73,846,790 27
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assetd &ir value through other comprehensive incomen-current (Notes 4, 7 and 29) 64,028 - 55,48 -
Investments accounted for using theiggmethod (Notes 4 and 12) 9,950,532 4 12,830,025 5
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4, 5, 133i)d 114,770,352 43 115,174,548 42
Right-of-use assets (Notes 4, 19 81 52,637,480 20 50,965,378 19
Investment properties (Notes 4 and 14) 2,047,448 1 2,047,448 1
Other intangible assets (Notes 4 and 15) 654,596 - 754,349 -
Deferred tax assets (Notes 4 and 26) 6,055,811 2 5,234,304 2
Other nonrcurrentassets (Notes 16, 19, 29 and 31) 22,375,706 8 9,742,416 4
Total noncurrent assets 208,555,953 78 196,803,926 73

TOTAL

$ 268,092198 100 $ 270,650,716 100

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities for hedgingcurrent (Notes 4, 19 and 29) $ 9,983,761 4 $ 8,437,648
Notes and accoungmyable (Note 29) 1,109,292 - 826989 -
Notes and accounts payableelated parties (Note 30) 730,428 - 733,837 -
Other payables (Notes 20 and 25) 13,265,783 5 12,865,006 5
Current tax liabilities 359,261 - 2,880,785 1
Lease liabilites- current (Notes 4 and 19) 1,185,17 1 882,538 1
Contract liabilities current (Notes 4 and 21) 15,257,687 6 3,416,733 1
Provisions- current (Notes 4 and 22) 3,490,653 1 2,578,812 1
Current portion obonds payable and put option of convertible bonds (Notes 4, 18, and 29) 2,350,000 1 2,525,000 1
Current portion of longerm borrowings (Notes 17, 29 and 31) 11,733,508 4 8,351,129 3
Other current liabilities 2,815,333 1 2,168,227 1
Total current liabilities 62,280,883 23 45,666,704 17
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities for hedgingnon-current (Notes 4, 19 and 29) 32,190102 12 27,839,847 10
Bonds payable (Notes 4, 18, and 29) 7,649,674 3 11,125,026 4
Long-term borrowings (Notes 17, 29 and 31) 56,751,142 21 76,804,516 29
Contractiiabilities - non-current (Notes 4 and 21) 1,280,906 1 635,633 -
Provisions- non-current (Notes 4 and 22) 16,927,949 6 15,229,888 6
Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 26) 8,259 - 822,368 -
Lea< liabilities - noncurrent (Notes 4 and 19) 10,428091 4 9,677,756 4
Net defined benefit liabilities norrcurrent (Notes 4, 5 and 23) 8,348,163 3 8,359,189 3
Other norcurrent liabilities 2,226,828 1 446,216 -
Total noncurrent liabiliies 135,811,114 51 150,940,439 56
Total liabilities 198,091,997 74 196,607,143 73
EQUITY (Notes 18 and 24)
Share capd#l 60,135,374 22 59,412,243 22
Capital surplus 3,120,311 1 2,694,529 1
Retained earnings
Legal reserve 925,385 - - -
Unappropriated retained earnings 6,384,381 3 9,253,848 3
Totalretained earnings 7,309,766 3 9,253,848 3
Other equity (534,375 - 2,713,828 1
Treasury shares (30,875 - (30,87H -
Total equity 70,000,201 26 74,043,573 27
TOTAL $ 268,092,198 1 $ 270,650,716 100

The accompanying notes are an integeat of the financial statements.



CHINA AIRLINES, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earings Per Share)

OPERATING REVENUE (Notes 4, 25 and 30)
OPERATING COSTS (Notes 4, 10, 25 and 30)
GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 4, 25 and 30)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
Other income (NMte 25)
Other gains and losses (Notes 11, 12, 13 and 25
Financecosts (Note 25)
Share of profit or loss of subsidies, associates an
joint ventures (Note 12)

Total nonroperating income anekpenses
PROFIT BEFORE INCOMHE AX
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4 and 26)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items hat will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

Gain (loss) on hedging instrumerdubject to
basis adjustment (Notes 4, 24 and 29)

Unrealized gin (loss) on investments in equity
instruments at fair value throagther
comprehensive income (Notes 4 and 24)

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (Note
and 23)

Share of tk other comprehensive income (loss
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method (Note:
and 24)

Income tax related to items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profitloss
(Note 26)

2022 2021
Amount % Amount %
$ 141,069,849 100 $ 132,140,248 100
128,089,348 91 106,229,54 80
12,980,501 9 25,910,694 20
7,063,461 5 6,590,298 5
5,917,040 4 19,320,396 15
1,307,531 1 374,625 -
1,824,894 1 (1,971,900 D
(2,220,960 D (2,164,174 2
(2,939,603 (2) (3,585,007 (3)
(2,028,138 (1) (7,346,456 (6)
3,888,902 3 11,973,940 9
1,029,399 1 2,594,035 2
2,859,503 2 9,379,905 7
(144,906 - (75,219 -
8,570 - (91,703 -
28,890 - (35,512 -
219,689 - 2,831 -
(67,7509 - 21,236 -
(Continued)



CHINA AIRLINES, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning®er Share)

2022 2021
Amount % Amount %

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to pi
or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of the
finandal statements of foreign operations
(Notes 4 and 24) $ 141,415 - % 17,597 -
Share of th@ther comprehensive income (loss)
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
accounted for using theyeity method (Notes ¢

and 24) 2,814 - 2,087 -
Gain (loss) on hedging instruments not subject
basis adjustment (Notes 4, 24 and 29) (4,141,144 3 264,168 -

Income tax related to items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit osk
(Note 26) 799,94 1 (56,353 -

Other comprehensive income for the year, n
of incometax (3,152,47% (2 49,137 -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) FOR
THE YEAR $ (292,972 - $  9,429042 7

EARNINGS PER SHARE (NEW TAIWAN
DOLLARS; Note 27)

Basic $ 048 $ 167
Diluted $ 0.47 $ 154
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. (Concluded)



CHINA AIRLINES, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Share Capital
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2021 $ 54,209,846
Basis adjustment to ga(loss) on hedging instruments -

Appropriation of 2020 earnings
Capital surplus used to covaccumulated deficit -

Issuance of employee share options by subsidiaries -
Changes in percentage of ownership interests in subsidiaries -
Net profit for the year ended Deceent81, 2021 -

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2021, net of
tax -

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2021 -
Equity component of convertible bonds issued by the Company -
Convertible bonds converted tadinary shares 5,202,397
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2021 59,412,243
Basis adjustment to gain (loss) on hedging instruments -
Appropriation of 2021 earnings

Legal reserve -

Cash dividends $0.83145736 per share -
Changes in capital surplus from dividends to subsidiaries -
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2022 -

Othe comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2022, net of
tax -

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended December 21, 202 -
Convertible bonds converted to ordinary shares 723,131
Others -
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2022 $ 60,135,374

The accompanying noteseaan integral part athefinancial statements.

Capital Surplus

$ 1,187,327

(350,581

540

188,862
1,668,381

2,694,529

1,725

424,050
7

$ 3,120,311

Retained Earnings

Other Equity

Legal Reserve

$ -
925,385
$ 925,385

Unappropriated

Earnings
(Accumulated
Deficit)

$ (350,581

350,581

(104,639

9,379,905

(21,419

9,358,487

9,253,848

(925,385
(5,000,000

2,859,503

196,415

3,055,918

$ 6,384,381

Exchange
Differences on
Translation of
the Financial
Statements of

Foreign Operations

$ (134,253

14,173

14,173

(120,079

115,781

115,781

$ (4299

Unrealized
Valuation Gain

(Loss)on Financial

Assets at
Fair Value
Through Other

Comprehensive

Income

$ 71,359

(76,879
(76.87)

46,430

46,430

$ 40,918

Gain (Loss) on
Hedging
Instruments
$ 2,606,659

99,507

133,253

133,253

2,839419

100,687

(3511,10)
(3,511,10)

$ (570,995

Treasury Shares

$ (30,879
(30,875
$ (30,879

Total Equity
$ 57,559,483

99,507

540
(104,63)

9,379,905

49,137

9,429,082

188,862

6,870,778

74,043,538

100,687

(5,000,000
1,725

2,859,503

(3,152,475
(292,972
1,147,181

7

$ 70,000,201



CHINA AIRLINES, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income before income tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Expected credit loss recognized on trade receivables
Interest income
Dividend income
Share of loss of subsidiaries, associates and joiritikes
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of necurrent asds held for sale
Loss on disposal of investments
Impairment loss recognized on propegiiant and equipment
Loss on inventory and property, plant and equipment
Net loss (gaipon foreign currecy exchange
Impairment loss on investments accounted for using the equity

method

Finance costs
Recognition of provisions
Loss on ale and leasebackansactions
Others

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Notes and accounts receivable
Accounts receivablerelated parties
Other receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Notes and accounts payable
Accounts payade - related parties
Other payables
Contract liabilities
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Defined benefit liabilities
Otherliabilities

Cash generated from operations

Interest received

Dividends received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Netcash generated from operating activities

2022 2021

$ 3,888,902 $ 11,973,940
26,756,562 26,503,214
181,662 179,111
38,474 38,474
(566,465 (132,220
(11,723 (8,359
2,939,603 3,585,007
(19,912 932,718

(558,477% -

- 540

1,641 -
675,274 1,391,279
1,580,216 (895,533

- 136,62
2,220,960 2,164,174
4,958,429 5,796,335
- 342,080

84,406 (3,629
2,515,841 (3,875,259
(76,209 46,950
(168,077 (117,039
(2,504,030 (1,009,933
(913,119 70,928
209,251 (278,147%
(3,409 145603
692,575 5,815,179
12,486,227 (927,583
(3,690,602 (1,476,769
660,685 1,474,423
17,864 106,282

72384 -
51,468,943 51,978,450
564,084 129,028
317,263 213,017
(2,361,44) (2,140,08})
(4,402,®9) (45,987
45,586,790 50,134,427

(Continued)



CHINA AIRLINES, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of financial assets at amortized cost
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortized cost
Purchase of finandiassets for hedgmn
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets for hedging
Acquisition of investments and joint ventures accounted for using
equity method
Proceed from disposal ofion-current assets held for sale
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in refundable degits
Decrease in refundable deposits
Increase in prepayments for equipment
Increase in computer software costs
Increase in restrictedsgets
Net aash inflow on disposal of subsidiary

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in sheterm bill payable
Proceeds from issuance of bonds p&yab
Repayments of bonds payable
Proceeds from lontgerm borrowings
Repayments of lonterm borrowings
Repayments of the principal portion of lease liabilities
Proceeds of guarantee deposits received
Refund of guarantee deposits received
Proceeds fromsale and leaseback transactions
Dividends paid

Net ash used in financing activities

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON THE BALANEC
OF CASH HELD IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

The accompaying notes are an integral part of fivgancial statements

-10-

2022 2021

$ (4,793,95) $(11,956,28p
11,923,94 5,863,137
(9,535,604 (7,126,51%
9,063,037 11,110,497
- (4,527,062

679,951 -
(2,269,028 (1,702,24%
25,141 586,395
(323,12} (79,357
472,380 104,584
(24,361,98% (12,182,07)
(70,28) (66,007
(28,909 -

- 9,730
(19,219,173 (19,965,200
- (8,088,882

- 4,500,000
(2,525,200 (6,300,000
4,231,761 40,224,874
(20,902,75% (38,683,065
(10,194,631 (8,769,98%
58,477 273,890
(61,489 (200,45)

- 2,810,098
(5,000,000 -
(34,393,83Y (14,233,48%
(394,070 17,556
(8,420,290 15,953297
35,913,117 19,959,20
$ 27,492,827 $ 35,913,117
(Concludedl



CHINA AIRLINES, LTD.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022AND 2021
(In Thousands ofNew Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwige

1. GENERAL INFORM ATION

China Airlines, Ld. (t h e A C g wygs founged in 1959 and its sba have been listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange since February 2693. The Companig primarily involved in (a)air transport services
for passengergargoand maij (b) groundservices and routine amaft maintenancgc) major maintenance
of flight equipment;(d) communications and data processing services to atiniéres; (e) the sale of
aircraft parts, equipment and the entire aircraft; @nléasing of aircraft.

The major shareholders of th€ompany are Chindviation Development FoundatioCADF) and
National Development Fund (NDF), Executive Yuan. As ofddelger 312022 and 2021CADF and NDF

jointly held 39.6%6 and40.17% respectiveo f t h e Co mpFarnhgyears eadbdecemise 31,
2022 and 2021theaverage number of empjees of the Comjany was10,794and11,078 respectively.

2. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financialstatementsvereappp ve d by t he CompanywWash9QR@xar d of di

3. APPLICATION OF NEW, AMENDE D AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATION S

a. Initial application of the amendments to timernational Financial Reporting Standards (IBR
International Accountig Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpaibns (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC)
(collectively, t he dihddfeisby dhe Fnandia BupaervisoBammiksion s s u
(FSC)

The appication of the IFRSs endorsed arsdued into effect by the ST did not have any material
impactontheCompan s accounting policies.

b. The IFRSsendorsed by the FSC for applicatioarting from2023

Effective Date
New, Amended and Revised Standards and Interpretatins Announced by IASB

Amendments to IfAScbumbDii srgl PoUd January 1, 2023 (Note 1)

Amendment s etfd nliAS o&h D Accou Jaruaryl, 2023(Note 2)

Amendments to | AS 12AsseBander r € January 1, 2023 (Note 3)
Liabilities arising from a ¢

Note 1. The amendments will bapplied prospectively for annugeporting periods beginning on or
after ;anuary 1, 2023.

Note 2: The amendments will be applicable to ebas in accounting estimates and changes in

accounting policies that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period
begnning on orafter January 1, 2023.

-11-



Note 3: Exceptfor deferred taxes that were recognized on January 1, 2022 fooreamlifferences
associated with leases and decommissioning obligations, the amendments were appliec
prospectively to transactions that oged on orafter January 1, 2022.

The applicabn of new IFRSsendorsedby the FSCfor applicationstarting from2023 would not have
any material irpact on theCompany s a c ¢ o iciestAs of thedgieaHefinancial statements were
authorized for issue, ¢hCompmny has assessed that the applicatad other standrds and
interpretations will not have a material isgt on he Co mp a ny 0 sitio and &nancial a |
performance.

c. ThelFRSs in isue but not yet endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC

Effective Date
New, Amended and Revised Standards and terpretations Announced by IASB (Note 1)

Amendmet s to | FRS 10 and | AS 2¢ Tobe determined by IASB

bet ween an I nvestor and its
Amendments to | FRS lakanileaa®ds Januaryl, 2024 (Note 2)
Il FRS 17 fConhast sroanc e January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 January 1, 2023
Amendments to | FRS 17 dJahdiRRE 17 January 1, 2023
Comparative I nformationbo

Amendmentsd |AS 1iClassification of Liabilities as Current or January 1, 2024
Noncurrento
Amendment s t-ourlrAé&ntl WiNaomi | i t i Januaryl, 2024

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the abdVew IFRSs are effective foannual reporting pesis
begnning on or after their respective effective dates.

Note 2: A sellerlessee shall apply the Amendments to IFRS 16 retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transadions entered into after the date of initial application of IFRS 16.

As of the date thdinandal statements we authorized for issue, th€ompanyis conthuously
assess$ng the possible impacif the application of other standaraisd interpretatinsontheCo mpany 6 s
financial position and financigderformance and will disclosedhelevart impact wha the assessment
is completed.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

The financialrepors have ben prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Sagties ksuers

Basis of Preparation
The financial satements have beengmaed on the historical cost basis eptfor financialinstruments

which are measured at fair valaed net defined benefit liabilities which are measured at the present value
of the déined benefit obligation leske far value of plan assets.
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The far value measurementsvhich are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 &an the degree to which the fair
value measurement inputseaobservable and based the significance of the imngs to the fair value
measurement in itentirety, are described as follows:

a. Level 1 inputs a quoted price@unadjustellin active makets for identical assets or liabilities;

b. Level 2 inputsare inputs other than gienl prices included within Ivel 1 that are observalelfor an
asset ofiahility, either directly(i.e., asprice9 or indirectly(i.e., derived from prices and

c. Level3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

When preparing these maat company only financial aements, the Company el the equity métod to
account for its investmenis subsidiaries, assa@ties and joint ventures. In order for #rmounts of the net
profit for the year, other comprehensiveome for the year andtéd equity in the parent corapy only
financial statments to be theame with the amounts attributabl® the owners of the Cqmany in its
consolidatedfinancial statemats, adjustments arising from the differences in accountiagtrhents
between the pant company only basis ancettonsdidatedbasis wee made to investents accounted for
using the equitynethod, the share of profr loss of subsidiaries, associatesl joint ventures, the share
of other comprehensive incomésubsidiaries, associat@nd joint ventures and theated equity items, as
appropriate, inheseparent company only financiatatements.

Classification of Current and Non-current Assets and Liabilities

Cumrent assets include:

a. Assets held primarily for the purpe of trading;

b. Asses expectedo be redized withn 12months after theeporting periodand

c. Cash ad cash equivalents unless the asset is ctstiifrom being exchanged or usedaditile a liability
for at least 12 months after the reportpegiod.

Current liabilifes include
a. Liabilities held pimarily for the mrpose of trading
b. Liabilities due to be settled within 12 months afterréif@orting period; and

c. Liabilities for which the Company does not have an unconditional righefer settlement for #&ast
12 monthsatter the reprting period.

Assetsand liabilities hat ae not clasified as current are classified as foomrert.
Foreign Currencies
In preparingthe Company dinancial reports transactions in currende ot her thams t hi

functional wrrency (i.e., foreign curencieg are recogreed at he raes of exchangerpvailing at the dates
of the transactions.
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At the end of each reportirperiod, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that datéxchangedifferences on monetary items arising from settlement or
translation are recognized ingdit or loss in the period in whiclihey arse exe@pt forexchange differences

on:

a. Foreign curency borrowings relatingp assets under construction foture productive ug, which are
included in the cost of those assetsen they are regarded as adjustment to interest costs on those
foreign currency borrowingsand

b. Transactions enteredtmin order to hedge caih foreign currency risks.

Non-monefary items denonmiated in foreign currencies that are measurediatvhlue are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the ¥alue is determinedExchang differences arisg from the
retranslation of nomonetary items are includea profit or loss forthe period except for exchange
differences asing from the retranslation of nemonetary itens in respect of which gas and losses are
recognized direty in other compreensive income, in which case, the exchange differences are als
recognized directy in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary iten denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical costed at the
reporting currency as originally translated from the foreign currency.

For the purposes of presertifinancial reports the assts and liabilities of th Co mp a ngnd s
operations areranslated into Newlaiwan dllars using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting periodincome and expense items am@nglated at the average excharages forthe period The
resulting currencyranslaion differencesare recognized in ber comprehensiviencome

On thedisposal of doreign operation, all of the exchange differencesuenulagd in equity in respectfo
that operation attributable the ownersof the Conpany arereclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are primarily expendable and nonexable partand materials, supplies used in operations
and itemsfor inflight sale and are stateat the lower of cost or net rezdble vale. The cots of
inventories sold or consumed are determingidg the weightedverage method.

Non-current Assets Held for Sde

Non-current assets are classified as Heldsak if their carrying amount will kB recovered principally
through asale trarsaction raher thanthrough continuing use. This conditionregarded as met only when
the sale is highly probabland thenon-current asset is available for immediate sale ipiesentondition.
To meet the riteria for the sale being highlgrobable, the approgate level of management must be
committed to thesale,andthe saleshould be expected to qualify for recitgpm as a copleted sale within
one year from the date of classdtion.

Noncurrent assets clsified as heldgor-sale aremeauredat the lower of heir prevous carrying amount
and fair vale less costs to sebuchassetzlassifiedasheldfor salearenotdepreciated.

Investments Accounted forUsingthe Equity Method

The Company uses the equitgethod to account fots investents in subsidiariesassociatés and joint
ventures
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a.

Investment in subsidiaries
A subsidiaryis anentity (includinga structuredentity) thatis controlled by the Company.

Under the equitymethod,an investmentin a subsidiaryis initially recognized at cost an@dusted
thereforetorem g ni z e t h ehat@ ofthp profityobless and other comgredive income of the
subsidiary The Company also recognizes tobhange inConpa ny 6 s s hahereequityfof theh e
subsdiary.

Changesri the Conpa n y 6rershipwterestsan a subsidiary that do not resuiin the Companyosing
controlof the subsidiaries are aagated for as equity tresactionsThe Company recognizes direcity
equity any difference between the camgi amounts of thénvestmen and thefair value of tle
consderation paid or received

When the Companyo©0s s hareeeedsfits inteveshstieas subsidiaryahicts u b s
includes any caying amount of thénvestmentaccounted fousingthe equity metbd andlong-tem
interst s t hat, i n subst anc ¢investment imthe sabsidigrihd Onpang Co
continues reggnizing its share of further lossésany.

Any excess of the cosif acquisition overth€ o mpany &8s s h ar &eobtheidentifieble n e t
assets and liabilities of a subsidiary thahstitutes a business at the date of acquisisaecognized as
goodwill, which is included within the cafing amount of thénvestment and is not amized. Any
excess of ¢ daee dGe mefaimwale of the identifiable assets and liakéliti of a
subsidiary that constitutes a businessr the cost of ajisition is recognized immediately in pitoor

loss.

The Company assesses its investment for any impairment by ¢omffee @rrying amount vith the
estimded recoverable amount as assesd based on the investeeos
Impairment loss is recognized when the carryargount exceeds the recoverable amount. If the
recoverable amount of the inva®rt sulsequently increses, the Compgy recognizes a reversal of the
impairment loss; the adjusted postersal carrying amount should not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been recognizdmet of amortizationhad no impairment loss been renizgd in prior
years. An inpairment lossecognized on goodwill cannbe reversed in a subsequent period.

Whenthe Company loses controf a subsidiary, it recognizes thevestment retairtein the former
subsidiary at its fair value at the date whenta is lost. The differene baéween the fair valuef the
retaired investmat plus any consideration receivetbahe carrying amount élfie previous investment
at the datewhen control is dst is recognized as a gain or loss in profit or loss. Bestissthe
Company accountsof al amounts previouslyecognized irother compehensive income in relation to
thatsubsidiary on the sameasis as would be required had thempany directly diposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

Profit or loss redting from downstream traretions is eliminated irfull only in the parent ompany
only financial statements. #fit and loss resultingecdm upstream transactions and tratisas between
sulsidiaries is recognized only in the parent company only finhstGitemats and only to ta exent of
interests irthe subsidiaes that arenot related to the Company.

Investments in associatesdgoint ventures
An associate is aentity over whichthe Company has significant influence anHich is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest ina jant venture. A jointventure is aoint arrargement whereby the

Company and othgrarties that have joirgontrol of the arrangement and thghts to the netssets of
the arrangement.
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The Company uses the equity methodatcountfor its investmets in associates and joinventures.

Under the equiy method,investmens in an associa anda joint ventureareinitially recognized at cost

and agusted thereafteib r ecogni ze t he Company 06 se @hpadiersiveo f t
incomeof the associate and joimenure The Compny alsor€e ogni zes t he chasnges
share of equity of assiates and joinventures attributdk to the Company.

Any excess of the cost of red thgnetifais valua ofihe identifigble t h
assets and liabilitie®f an assaate and a joint venture recognized at the dateaagfuisition is
recognized as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is not
amortized. Ay excessof t h e  C o mpaeerofytihesnet galn value of the idemndlfle asset and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition taf reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

When the Company subscribes for additional new shares of anisssard a joint ventureat a
percentage differenfrom its existig ownership percentage, the resulting camgi amount of the
investmat differs from the amount of the @@ any 6 s jate intgrestrirt the@ssociate and joint
venture The Company rexds such a dfference as amadjustment to investmén with the
corresponding amunt charged or credited to caisurplus. If the Compgnd s owner shi p
reduced de to it additional subscripton of the new shares of the associate gaoht ventue, the
proportionate amount ofhe gains or losses pfieusly recogried in othercomprehensive income in
relationto that associate and jiventures reclassified to profibr loss on the sae basis as would be
required had the investee directly dispd of the relaied assets or lmlities. When the adgtment
should te debited tocapital surplus, but the capitslirplus recognized fronmvestments accounted for
using the quity method is isufficient, the shortage is debited to retained earnings.

When the Comp a n ghérs of lossesf an associate arafjoint ventureequals or exceds its interest in
that associat and joint venturéwhich includes any carrying amount of tievestment accouad for
using the equity method and lotgym interests thain subgance, érm part of theCo mpany 6 s
investmenm in the assdate and joint venturg, the Company discontingerecognizing its sharef o
further loss Additional losses ahliabilities arerecognized only to the extent that the Company has
incurredlegal obligations or constructie obligations, or madgayments on éhaf of that aésociate and
joint venture

The entre carrying amount of #hinvestmentincluding goodwil) is tested for impaiment as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable anmiauth its carryng amount. Anyrmpairment loss recognizesl
not allocatedto any asgsgincluding goodwill, that formpart of the carrying ammt of the investment.
Any reversalof that impairmentloss is recognized to the extent that the recoverablmua of the
invegment subsequedmgtincreases.

The Companyliscontirues thaise of theequity method from the date orhigh its investmenteassto

be an agxiate and a joint ventar Any retained imestment is measured at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regaded asthe investmends fair value on initial reogniion as a financiaasset. Th
difference between the previoaarrying amount of thessociate angbint ventureattributale to the
retainal interest and its fair value is includlen the determination of the gaiar loss on dispsal of the
associa andjoint venture The Company acounts for all amounts previoystecognized in other
conmprehensive income in relation to thessociate angbint ventureon the same basis as would b
required hadthat associatdirectly disposed ofhe related assets liabilities.

When he Companytransacts with its associate goiht venture profits am losses resulting from the

transadbns with the assate and joint ventureare recognizednithe Compa n g/fibancial statemets
only to the &tent of interestsn theassociate and theint venurethat are not related to theo@pany.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant andgeipment are tangle items ttat are held for use in th@oduction or supply of goods
or srvices, for retal to others, or floadmiristrative purposeand are gpected to be used for more than
one period. The cost ohatem of property, plant and equipnt shall be recatgized as arasset if, and only
if, it i s probable that future economic Inefits associatbwith the item willflow to the Company; ahthe
costof the item can be measured rblia Property, plant andquipment are stated at cost lesogaized
accumulaed depreciabn and recognized accumtegdimpairment loss.

Freehold lad is not depreaited.

Depreciationis recgnized using thetraightline method. Each significant pastdepreciated separately
The estimated useful lives, resaflwalues and depciation mehods are reviewed at the cef each
reporting periodThe inpact of any chages in accounting @matesis accounted foon a prospctive basis
under IAS 8fiAccourting Policies, Changesisc count i ng Est.i mates and Err

An item of propertyplantand equipment ¥ be derecogizeduponits disposal, or when rioture benefits
can be expecteddm its use or dispgal. On derecgnition of an iten of propety, plant and equipmenthe
difference betweethe saleproceeds and the carrying amounthaf asseis recognized in prdfior loss

Investment Properties

Investment proprties are propertie held to earn rentalandbr for capital appreation. Investment
properties alsinclude land held fo a currently ndetermined future use.

Investment poperties areinitially measurd at cost including transaction asts. Subsequenb initial
recogniton, investment properties areeasured at cosiess accumaited depreciation angccumulated
impairmert loss.

An investment propeytwill be derecognied upon its disposal, or when fioture benefits can be expected
from its use or dipmal On derecogrtion of an investment propeyt the differencebetween the et
disposal prooeds and the caying amount of the assistincluded in profit or loss

Intangible Assets

Intangible assetsvith finite useful lives that aracquired sepataly are initially neasured at cost and
subsequentlymeasured at &b less accumlated amortizatin and accumulad impairment loss.
Amortization is recogized on a straigHiine basis. The estimated usefides residual values, and
amorization methodsre reviewed at thend of each reporting perio@he residualvalue of an intamgible
asset witha finite usefullife shall be assumed toe zero unless the Company expectsligpose of the
intangible asgebefore the end of its economidfé. The impat of any clanges in amounting estimges is
accountedor on a prospative bais uinder IAS 8iAccounting Policies Charges in Accounting Eshates
and Errors.

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets Oher Than Goodwill

At the end of ech reporting p@od, the Company kéews the carrying amounts ofsitangible and
intangibleassets, excludinggoodwill, to detemine whether there is grindication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. #ny suwch indication exist, the reoverable amourtf the asset is dstated

in order to determine thextent of thampairmentloss. When it is ot possible to ésnate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Coany estimates the recoverablm@un of the caskgenerang unitto
which the asat belongs. Corporatassets are allocated to theliwdual caskhgenerating wits on a
reasonale and consistenbasis; otherwise, corpate assets are allocated to the sesaligroup of
cashgenerating uits on areasonable andasistenbasisof allocation
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Intangible asets with indefinite useful liveiad intangible asets not gt available for se are tested for
impairment at least anally, and whenever there is an indioa that the asset may bapared.

The recoverable amunt isthe higher of fa value less cds to sell and value in use. In asseg value in
use, the Cmpany uses the dsiated cash flowsliscounted by the futurpre-tax discount rate, and the
discaunt rate reflects the cumemarkettime value of monewnd thespecific riskso the asset fagstimated
future cash flows not yetjusting to tle market.

If the recoverableamount of an as$ or caskgenerating uniis estimated to be less than itgrgang
amount, the carryingmaunt of the asset or cagienerating unit is redued to its recovetble amountwith
the resulting impairment loss recognized in profit or.loss

When an impairment ks is subsequtly reversel, the carrying amunt of the correspondingasset
cashgeneating unt or assetselatedto contractcostsis increased to the vised estimatef its recoverable
amount, but only to the extent thfe carryingamount that wold have been determined had no impairment
loss beemrecognizedon the assetcashgeneratig unit or assetgelatedto contractcostsin prior yeas. A
reversabf an impament loss is recognized in profit mss.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets anfinancial liabilities are reognized when the Company becomes a party to the
cortractual provisions of theinstrumentswith theresuling impairmentiossrecognizedn profit or loss

Financial assets dnfinancial liabilities & initially measured at fair valudransaction costs that are
directly attributable tohte acquisitbn or isuarce d financial assets and financial liabilitiésther than
financial assets andinancial liabiliies at FVTPL are added to or deducted frothe fair value of the
financial asets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on i@litrecogniion. Transadion costs directly
attributable to the acquisition ofinncial ases or financal liabilities at FVTPL are recoged
immediately in profitor lossincluded in the initidyy recognizedamount of financial assets financial
liabilities
a. Financid asets
All regularway purchases or sales of financessets areecognized andlerecognized on a trade date
basis. All regulamway purchases osales of financial assetse buy or sell bfinancial asset in the
period set by rgulationor market comention.

1) Measurement categ@s

Financial assets arclassifiedinto thefollowing categories: Financial assets at FVTPL, financial
assets atimortized cost, and invasents in equity istruments at FVTOIL.

a) Financial assetat FVTPL
Finandal assets areclassfied as at FVTPL when such a financialeass mandatdly classified
or designated as at FVTPL. Financial assets mandatorily fidgissis at FVTPL include
investments in eqtyi instruments wich are not designated asFVTCCI.
Financialasets @ FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair valmgg any remeasurement

gains or lossesn such financiahssets areecognized in profit oloss. Fair value is det@ined
in the maner described in Ne 29.
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b) Financial asds at anortized cost

Finandal assés that meet the following conditions arebsequentlymeasured at aomtized
cost:

i. The financial assstareheld within a businessiodel whose objective i® hold financial
assets in ordeptcollect contractual cadlows, and

ii. Thecontracual tams of the financial assegive rise on sgcified dates to cash flovs that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the jpah@mount outstanding.

Subsequent to itial recognition,financial assets at amad cet, includingcash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, other reebles and diter financial assets, are measured at
amortized cost, which equals the grossyeag amount determinedsing the effectig interest
methodless any impairment losExchame differencesre recagnizedin profit or loss.

Interest income isabculated by aplying the dfective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financid asset.

Cash equivalestinclude time degsits with originhmaturities within 3 moths fromthe date of
acquisition, which are highly liquid, readily convertible®e a known arount of cashand are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.s€heash equivalents areslt for the
purpo® of meeting shotterm cash commitments.

c) Invegments in equy instrunentsat FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Gapany may makean irrevocale election to designate investments
in equity instruments as &/TOCI. Designationasat FVTOCI is not pemitted if an equit
investment is held fatradingor if it is contingentconsideration recognized by an acquirer in a
business combinon.

Invesments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently meastfedt aalue with
gains ad losses arisinffom changes in favalue recognized in ber compehensive incme
and acumulated in other equity. The cumulative gainloss will rot be reclasied to profit or
loss on disposal of the equity investmentstead, they will be trarisrred to retaine@arnings.

Dividends on these investmeritsequity instrumentsare recoquizedin profit or loss when the
C o mp a n yttoseceive lbtg dividendss established, unless the dividends clearly represent a
recoveryof part of the cost ofrainvestment.

2) Impairment of finacial assets

The Companyrecognkes a loss allwarce fa expeded credit losses on financial assets at
amortized cas(includingtrade receivablgsas well as contract assets.

The Company alwgs recognizes lifetime @ected credit logs (ECLS) for tradce receivables and
other eceivabés. For all dter financial instruments, the Company recognizes IifeiECLs when
there has beea significant increase in credit risk since initial recognitibron the other handhée
credit risk ona financial instrment has not increasedgsificartly since inital recogition, the
Company measures the loss allowaforehat financial instrunent at an amount equal to-tr#bnth
ECLs.
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Expected credit lossagflect the weighted avage of credit losss with the respéiwe risks of a
default @wcurring as the weidls. Lifetime ECLs represents the expected credit loskas will resut
from all pssible default events over the expected life of a financialumsint. In contrast,
12-month ECLs represerg the portion of ifetime ECLs that is expeted toresult from @faut
events m a financial instrument that are possitlighin 12 maiths after theeporting date.

The impairment loss of all financial assetsesognized in profit ordss by a reductiom their
carryingamounts through a losiavana account, exapt for investnents in debt instruments that
are measureét FVTOCI, br which the bss allowance is recognized in other comprehensive
income and thearrying amounts of sudimancial assetare not reduced.

3) Derecognition of finacial asets

The Compny dere@gnizes a financial asset only when the contuattrights tothe cash flow from
the asset expire or when it transfers the financial assesubstantially all thesks and rewardef
ownership oftie asset to another party

On cerecognition 6 a financial asset at amortized cost in its entiretile differencebetween the
assetdbs carrying amount and andreceivahlens recdgredith e c
profit or loss.However, on derecognition of an igsiment inan equity ingument atFVTOCI, the
difference between tha s s et 6 s ¢ arnd yhe sugn ofathre cconsideratian receivand
receivable is recauzed in profit odoss, and the cunfative gain or loss whithad been recognized

in other compehensive itome is trangfred directly to retained earnings, withoutcycling
through profitor loss.

b. Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued byghCompany are clasied as equity m accordance witthe sulstance of
the contractual arrangemsiand thedefinitionsof an equity instrument.

Equity instrumentssisued by the Company ameognized at the proceeds received, ofedirect issue
costs.

Therepurchase of h e C o nowreeguitydinstruments is regnized in and deducted directly fino
equity, and its carryilg anountsare céculated based on weighted average by share.tijzegain or
loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellatiorCaj thhep a own 6 s
equity ingruments.

c. Financial labilities

1) Subsequentmeasuemert

Except for derivativefinancial irstruments all financid liabilities are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method.

2) Derecognition of financial liabilitie
The difference between the camg amount of a fiancial lability deremgnized ad the
consderation paidincluding any norcas assets trasfierred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in
profit or loss.
d. Convertible bonds
The component parts @ompound mstruments(i.e. convertble bond} issuedby the mpanyare

classified sparately asfinancial liabilities and equity inaccordance wh the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an ewgtityment.
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On initial recognitionthe fair value othe liablity componert is estmated usinghe prevailig market
interest ratefor similar ron-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on an
amortized cost basis using the effeetinteres method until extinguistd upon conversioar uponthe
instrumentd matrity date. Any embedded derivate liability is measuedat far value.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability
comporent from the fair value of the compand instrument aa whole.This isrecaynized and included

in equity, netof income tax effectsard is rot subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion
option classified as equity will remain in equity until t@nversionoption is exercised, iwhich case,

the badance reognizedin equity will be transfered to capithsurplus- share premims. When the
conversion option remains unexercised at maturity, the balance recognized in equity will be transferrec
to caital surpls- share premiums.

Transaction costdhat relag to the isswane of the convertille notes arallocated to the liabily and

equity components in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating tc
the equity component a recognized directly inequity. Transactio costs elating to the liability
componentre includedn the carrying amourtf the liability component.

e. Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative findriaistrumers to manage its exposueinterest
rate,foreign exchang rate ard fuel price risksincluding breign exchange forwarcbntracs, interest
rate swaps, currency optioasd fueloptionsandswaps

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair valuets dateon whichthe derivative cotnacts are entered
into ard are sulsequently remeasured to #ir fair valle at the end of eaclegorting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is desagdated
effective as a hedging instruntein which eventthe timng of the recogrition in profit orloss depends

on the nature of thbedging relationship. When the fair value of a derivative financial instrument is
positive, the derivative is recognized afinancialasset; when the fair va of a derivativdinancial
instrumentis negative, the derative is reognized as a financidilability.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial asset hosts that is within the scope o
IFRS 9are not segrated; instead, the clsification is detemined n accordance with the entire hybrid
contract. Devatives embedded inon-derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the
scope of IFRS 9 (e.g., financial liabilities) areabed as sepate derivatives when ¢y meet the
definition of a deivative, ther risks and chareteristics ag not closely relatetb those of the host
contracts, and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Hedge Accounting

The Companydesignate certain heging instruments, whiclinclude derivative and no-derivatives in
respect of foreigncurrency rig, as cash flow hedge®Vhen entering into hedging transactions, the
Company has prepared official documents that desdfilee hedging relationgh between &dging
instruments andéims which have beehedgedthe obgctive d risk managementhe hedgingtrategy, and
the wayto evaluate the effectiveness of the hedging instrument.

The effective portion ofjains and losses aerivatives that @&designateé&nd qualify as cash flolvedges

is recogrnzed in dher comprehensie income. The ga@or losesrelating to the ineffetve portionare
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

-21-



The associated gains or losses thate recognized in other mprehensivancome are reclassifiedom
equity to prott or loss @ redassifiation adjustmerstin the line tens relating to thehedged item in the
same periodin which the hedged item affects profit or loss. If a hedge of recfmsted transaction
subsguently resits in the recognition o nonfinancial aset ora non-financial liability, the associated
gains and losses that wenecognized in other comprehensive income are removed from equity and
included in the initial ost of the notfinancial assebr nonfinancial liability.

The Company discontinuge hedge amurting only when the hedmng relationship cease® meet the
qualifying criteria; for instance, when the hedging instrument expires ordsteominated or exercised.
The cumulativegain or loss on the heinhg instrument thlahas been previaly recogized in other
comprehensiveincome from the periodin which the hedg was effectivg remains separately in equity
until the forecasted transamti occurs. When a forecadtansactionis no longer expected toccur, the
gairs or losesaccumuléed in eqity arerecognized immediagly in profit or loss.

Provisions

The Canpany recognizes provisions when the Company has a present oblifjaah or constructive
obligation) arising flom past evenisthe paymaent for the obligabn is probable, rd the expediture for
sdtling the dligation can beeliably estimated

The anount recognized as a provisionngeasured ahe best estimate of tlexpenditure required to settl
the presentbbligation at the end othe reporting pedd, taking into acount the isks and uncetainties

surrounding the obligationWhen a provisions measuredat the estimate ahe cash flowdo settle the
present obligationts carrying amount ishe present alue of those cash flowaVhen the aircraftease
contractsof the Compay expire andwill be retuned to lessor, the Corapy will assess ithere are existing
obligations and if a provision is requirembe recognizedhen signing the leasmntract.

Revenue Recognition
TheCompany recognizeevenue by applyinthe following steps
Identifying the contract with theustomer;
Identifying the performance obligations in the contract;
Determine the transaction price;
Allocate the tansaction piceto the performance olgiations in the cdmact; and
Recogize revenawhen tte Conpary satisfes a performance obligan.

Shipping serice revenue

Passenger and cargo revenue are recognized as revenue when the passengers andofoaitis Greed.
When the tickets arsold, due to theafct that the fuliment of performane obligations of the shipment
have not ben met, the relevanamount of revenue isitially recorded as contract liabilities until
passengers actually board.

Leasing

At theinception of acontract the Company assses whether theontract is,or contans, a lease.

The Company as lessee

The Company recognizgight-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases at the commencement date of
a lease, excepfor shortterm leases and Vo-value &set leases accaed for applying arecognition
exemption wherelease pgments are recognized egpenses on a sight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Rightof-use assets are initially measured at cost, which deegp the inial measuremenof lease
liabilities adjused for lease paynmés made taor before the commencemendate, plus any initiatiirect

costs incred and an estimate of costs needed to restore the underlying assets, and less any lease incenti
received. Rightof-use assetsra subsegently measured atost less accumated depreiation ard
impairment loses and adjusted for amgmeasurement ofhe lease liabilities. Righof-use assets are
presented on a separate line inléance shest

Right-of-use asds are depreciat usingthe straighfine method from the aomencementlates to the
earlier of the end of the useful ligeof the rightof-useassets or the end of the lease terms. However, if
leases transfer ownership of the undedyassets to the Coramy by the end bthe lease terms or if the
costs of rightof-use assetreflect that the Company will exercise a purchasmption, the Compay
depreciates the rightf-use assets from the commencement dates to the end of the ussfudflithe
underlyingassets.

Leaseliabilities are initially reasured at the ment valueof the lease payments, which comprise fixed
paymers, in-substance fied payments, variable lease payments which depend on an index or a rate,
residual value guantees, the exerciseripe of a purchse optionif the lessee igeasonably certaito
exercie tha opton, and payments of penalties for temating a lease if lie lease term reflects such
termination, less any lease incentives payable. The lease paynerdiscounted usintpe interest &
implicit in a lease, ifthat rate can beeadily detemined. If tha rate cannot be readily determinettie

| e s s e engrtal bormowing eatewill be used

Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured at aradrtost using the efftive interest method, vth
interest expese recognized ovehe leasedrms. Whenthereis a change in a lease term,late in the
amountsexpected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, a change in the assessngtidrofan o
purchase annderlying asst, or a chage in future leas payments resuftg from a clangein anindexor a

rate used to determine tleoggayments, the Conamy remeasures the lease liabilities with a corresponding
adjustment to the righaf-useas®ts. However, if the arrying amount éthe right-of-useassetss reduced

to zero,any remaimg amount of the remeasurement is recognized iroffi or loss. Leaseliabilities are
presentd on a separate line in thalance sheets.

The Companynegptiates with the lessor for rent concessions as a direct consequeboédi9 to change

the leas paymentsoriginally due by June 30,022, whichresults in the revisedonsideration for the lease
substantiallyless thanthe consideation for the lease immediately preceding the change. There is no
substantive change to other terms aodditiors. TheCompanyeleds to applythe practical expedient il

of theserent cancessions for the abovementioned lease contracts, and therefore, doeseastwhether the
rent concessions are lease modifications. Instead;dngpanyrecognizes the reductian lease payment

in profit or loss in the @riod in which the events or aditions that trigger the concession occansl makes

a correspondigadjustment to the lease liability.

Variable lease payments that do not depemdroindex or a rate arecogrized asexpensesin the period
in which they are incued.

For sale andeaseback transtions, if the transfer of an asset satisfies regirements of IFRS 15 to be
accounted for as a sale, the Company recognizes ambmibunt of any gain ooks wiich relatesto the
rights trarsferred to the buydesor, and adjusts theff-market term3o measure the sale proceeds at fair
value. If the transfer does not satisfy the requirements of IFRS 15 to be accounted for asitisal
accounted for aa financing transadion.

EmployeeBenefits

a. Shorttermemployee benefits

Liabilities recogized in respect of shererm employee benié$ are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exgdéor the related serés.
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b. Reirementberefits

Paymend to the defined contriltion retirement berfgé plan are reognized as expenses when
employees have renasl sevices entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit costéincluding servte cost, net interest amdmesuement) under definedretirement
benefit plan are detmined using the rpjected unit crdit method. Service cogincluding current
servicecost and past service cpstnd net interest on the net defined benefit liabdifi@ssety are
recognizedas enployee benefts expense in theperiod in which they oeao. Remeasurement,
comprising actuaal gains and losses and treturn on plan assefexcluding interest is recognized in
other comprehensive income in the periodwihich it occurs. Remeasmentrewmgrized in other
compreherige income is reflectednimediately in retaied earnings anavill not be reclassified to
profit or loss.

Netddi ned benefi't l'iabilities (assets) represenr
benefit plansAny sumplus resiting from this calculation is limited to the present vabdieny refunds
from the plans or reductions future contributionso the plans.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing casts directly attthutable to the acquisitip construction or prodtion of qudifying assetsare
added to the co®f those assets, unslichtime as the ssets are substaaty ready for their inended use

or sale.

Investment incomearned on the tgporary inveiment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qudifying asstsis deducted from the bomang costs eligible for gatalization.

Other than that whic is stated above, alltetr borrowing costs are recognizedinfit or loss inthe period
in which they are incurred.

Government Grants

Governmengrants are notrecognized until there is reanable assurance that tR®mpany will comply
with the condions attached to them @ihat the grants will be received.

Government grantgelated toncomeare recognized in profit or loss on a systematidsbager the perods
in which theCompanyrecanizes as expenses theateldcoststhatthe grantsntendto compensate.

Governmenh grants that are receivable as congagion for expenses or deesdready incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediaténarcial supportto the Companywith no futue related costs are recdgad
in profit orloss in the perid in which they are recesd.

The benefit of a government loaeceived at a belomarlket rae of interest is treated as a government
grant measureds the difference between the proceeds recslvand the fair value ofhe lban based on
prevailing marketnterest rates.

Frequent Flyer Programs

The Comp anya shtays Fal yfeD ugh nhclyprogrand members @an convert accumulated
mileage to aakin upgrade free tickets and other membemwards.

A portion of pasemer revenue atibutable to theewards for the frequerilyer program is deferred. The

Company recognizes this defemlerevenue as revenue only when the Company has fulfilledbiligyations
on the granting of rewards or whehe period for convertinthe mileage to revards has expired

-24-



Share-based Payment Arangements

Equity-settled sharbasel payments to employeeseameaured at the fair value of the equity instruments
at thegrart date.

The fair value determined at thgrant date of the equitsetled sharébasel payments is exgnsed on a
straightline basis over the vesting period, basedt h e Co mp a n pf@gity iestramenntodt will
eventually vest, with a corngendng increasdn capital surplus employeeshare options. The fairalue
determined athe grant datefahe equitysettled sharbased payments is recognized asgrense in full
at the grat dae when the granted share options are vested immediately

Taxation
Income tax expense represents siuen of the current tax drdeferred tax.
a. Current tax

The current tax liabilitiesre based on current taxable prdiitice part of the incomand &penses are
taxable or deductible in other periods, ar acordance wih the relevant tax laws arextble or
deductible, curnaet taxable profitdiffers from netprofit reported in the atements of comprehensive
income. The Company 0s c wliitreg aré calculmted bl tha tax rate was legislated or
substartially legidated at the balance sheetealat

According to the Incom Tax Act in the ROC, an additionatax on unappropriated eaings is provided
for in the year th shareholderspprove theetain earnings.

Adjust ments of psaeadedtoededustéd fromatixe clrrentyle d $ i t @a®. pr o
b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recogméd on temporary differees between the carrying aomis of asets and
liabilities in the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxablié. Deferred tax
liabilities are genally recanized for all taxableeemporary differences. Defmrd tax assets are
generallyrecognizd for all deductible tempary differences, unused loss carryforwards and unused tax
credits for purchases of maabty, equipmentand technology, reearch ad developnent expenditures,
andpersonnel training expendites to the extent that it jgobabletha taxable profit will k& available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognizedbr taxalle tempoary differences assoda with investments in
subsdiaries and associates aimfierestsn joint ventures, excepthere the Company is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and irigbgble that thetemporary differace will not revese

in the foreseeablaufure. Deferred tax assetsising from deductible tempary differences associated
with sud investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probablerdaitltibe
sufficient taxable prfit agairst whichto utilize the benefitef the temporary differenseand they are
expected toaverse irtheforeseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reportingeodced

to the extent that its no langer prolable that sufficient teable profit will be availale to allow all or

part of he assetfo be recovered. A previaly unrecognized deferred tax asset is also reviewed at the
end of each reporting peri@hdrecaynized b the extent that has beome prolable that future taxaél
profit will allow the defered tax asset to be recoedr

Defearedtax liabilities and asets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which theliabilities aresettled or the asts are ealized,based on tax ratgandtax laws that have

been eacted or substantively enadtby theend of the reporting perith The measurement of deferred

tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequehe¢would follow from the mannemi which te
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Compary expects, at the end the reporting period, toecover or settle the carngnamountof its
assets and liabilis.

c. Current and deferred taxes for the year

Current and deferred taxes are recogdin profit or loss, except whenhey relag to itens that are
recognizedn other comprehensive inconee directly in equity, in Wich casethe current and deferred
taxes are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, regpectiv

Maintenance and Overhaul Cogs
Routine mainteance costs are recaged in profit or loss in thgeriod in which they are aqurred.

The overhaul costs of an awd or leased aircraft that meet the criteria for fixed asset capitalization are
capitalzed asreplacenents for aircraft ad engine and aredepreciated on a stght line basis over the
expected annual overhaul cycle.

. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

I n the applicati on gpficies hsaficl@edrimpNata 4nmarmagemenis requradtta n
make judgmentsestimationsand assumptionen the carryingamountsof asgtsandliabilities thatare not
readly apparentfrom other source.The estimatesand associatedassumptionsare based on Istorical
expaienceassumptionsgnd other factorghat are considerrelevant. Actual results may differ fronthese
estimates.

The Conpany considershe mssible impact of the recent development of the COV8and its economic
environment implications wime m&ing its critical accounting gtimates on cash flows, growth rates,
discount rates, profibilities, etc. The estimates and ungieg assumptionarereviewed on an ongoing
basis.Revisions tarecognized in the period in which the estimates are @dvighe revsions affect only
tha period or in the period of the rigions and future periods if the revisions affect both cumadtfuture
periods.

Key Sources of Estimation Uhcertainty

The key assuptions concerning thaifureand othelkey source of estimaton uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that havasignificant risk of causing a material adjustihto the arrying amounts of
asses andiabilities withinthe next financial yeara discussed below.

Defined Benefit Obligations

The presentvalue of defined benefit obligations at the end of theontaqy period is calculated using
actuarial assuntjpns. Thoseassumptions, whidr arebasedo n ma n a g e gmenist adds estimates,
conprise the discount ta and &pected eturn on phnassets. Chnges in actuarial assumptions may have a
material impacbnthe amount of defined benefit obligations.

Usdul Lives ofProperty, Plant and Equipment - Flight Equipment

Flight equipmeniare measured at costless esidualvalueand are depreiated on a staightline basis ger
thar estimated useful Ves The etimated useful lives and residual values are uatatl basg on the
Companys historical experience and currérusage condition in thaviation indudry. Because ofthe
charge in fleetplanning, tre Companys board of dectorsresoledto modify the estmated usefullives of
fourteen B747400F freightes from 25 yars to 2 years ad the emated useful Wes of three A3306300
aircraftfrom 20 yeas to 18 yars, effetive on January 1 2022, in oder to match the econombenefits
with the useful Wes. It is estimated that the depreciation expans2022 will increaseby $720million.
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6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31

2022 2021
Cashon hand and m®lving funds $ 45,097 $ 36,905
Checking accounts and demand deposits 4,898695 22,579,423
Cash equivalents
Time depositwith original maturities of lessthan three months 17,572,393 9,279,778
Repuchase agreements collatézedl by bonds 4,976,642 4,017,011

$ 27,492,827 $ 35,913,117

The market rate intervals of cash in banks and cashaqutg at the endf the reporting priod were as
follows:

December 31

2022 2021
Bark balance 0.33%-1.00% 0.00%1.90%
Time deposits with original maturities of less than threatims 1.27%-4.95% 0.17960.39%
Repurchase agreements colfatezedby bonds 1.15%-4.70% 0.35%60.45%

The Companydesignatd some deposits denominated in USD asolurchas ageemets derominaed in
USD collateralized by bonds as hedging instrumeatawdd exchange rate fluctuations on final payments
of aircrdt orders and prepayents for equiprent, and applied ash flow helge accounting to lage its
foreign exchange exposure. Ttwrtract informationis as follows:

Carrying
Maturity Date Subject Value

Decenber 31, 202 2023.1.32023.1.19 Finangal assets for hedgin current $ 3,987,730
December 31, 202 2022.2.72022.2.14 Financial assets for hedgingurrent 3,545706

Impact on compremsive incomegloss)

Recognizedn
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

For the year endeDecember 31, 22 $ (40,217
Forthe year ended Decemtit, 2021 (75,2149

For the yeas ended DecembeBl, 202 ard 2021, the anmount of hedging instrument gk2ments
recognized aprepyments for equipment wai01,626thousand an$99,507thousand respetively.
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7. FINANCIA L ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THR OUGH OTHER COMPREHENSI VE INCOME

Investments in Equity Instruments

December 31
2022 2021
Non-current
Foregn investments
Unlisted shares $ 22900 $ 26,654
Domestic investmnts
Unlisted shees 41,128 28,804
64,028 $ 55,458

These investments in egpitnstruments are not held for trading. Insteadhey are held for medim to
longterm strategic purposeand are expectea tprofit through longterm investmentsAccadingly, the
managment elected to designatesie investments in equity instrumentaelBVT OCI astheybelieve that
recognizing shorterm fluctuations inthesei nvest ment s 6 ofitaor loss wauldnote e
consistent with h e  C o mp agp of lBoklingsthtes iravésenents for lorterm purposes.

. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORT IZED COST

Decenber 31
2022 2021
Current
Time deposis with original maturities omore than 3 months $ 4764801 $ 11923,194

The rangeof interest ratesfor time deposits with origisl maturities of more than 3 monthsene
appoximately 0.43%-5.06% and0.3R46-0.53% per annm as of December 32022and 2021 respectively.

. NOTES RECEIVABLE AND ACCOU NTS RECEIVABLE, NET

December 31

2022 2021
Notes receivable $ 71,848 $ 968
Accounts receivable
At amortized cost
Gross carrying amount 10688166 13,193,912
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (230,350 (204,48)

10,457,816 12,989,431

$ 10,529664 $ 12,990,399
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The average credit period wasto 55 days.In deermining the recoverability of aaccountgeceivable, the
Company considered any change in the credit qualithefreceivable site the date credit was iilly
granted to the endf the reporting period, andny allowance for impainent loss wasbasedon the
estimaed irrecoverable amounts detémed byrefer ence t o t he Companyds pas
counterparty and raanalysis of the counteapr t gurdent financialposition. The Company adopted
policy of only dealingwvith entitiesthatare eted theequivalent of investment grade higher and obtaining
sufficient collateral, where appropriate, asneans of mitiging the risk of financialoss fom defaults.
Credt rating information is obtaed from independent iiag agencieswhere &ailable or, if not available,
the Company wesother pulicly available financial information or its own tradingcords to ratets major
customers. The Gop a nexgosure and theredit ratings of its countparties are continuousiyonitored
and the agregde value of transactions concluded isrspd anongs$ approved counterparties. Credit
exposure is controllethy counterparty fnits that are reviewed arabprowed by the risk maagement
committee annually.

The Company applies thaplified appoach b allowing for expected credit losses preser by IFRS9,

which permits the use of lifetime expected loss afloge for allaccountreceivables. The expectededit

losses oraccouns receivableare estimated usy a provision matridoy referenceto past @faut experience

with the debtors and an dysis oft he debt orsé current f ieraleecooomi | p
conditons of the industry in wibh thedebtors operatenal an assessment of both tharent as well as the
forecaded drection d ecanomic conditions at the reporting datdsthe Conpany déds hi st or i c
experience does not showgmificantly different loss patterns for diffent cistomer segmentshé loss
allowance based ondtpast due status istrfarther didinguishal acording to the different segments of the
Conpa n ycéstomer base.

The Company writes officcountsreceivalle when there is imirmation indicating thathie debor is
experiencingsevere financial difficulty ad there is no realist progpect d recovey. Fa accourts
receivable that have been it off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement actoviggtempt
to recove the past due receivablé&/hererecoveries are na, these are recognized iofir or loss.

The folowing table detailsthe lbss allowance ofaccountreceivables basedntheCompany 6 s pr o
matrix.

December 312022

1to 30 Days 31to 60 Days 61to90 Days Over 90 Days

Not Pag Due Past Due PastDue PastDue Past Due Total
Expededcredt loss rae 1.07% 5.22%%6 46.6%%6 46.4%% 99.1%%
Gross carryingmount $ 10527938 3 41,208 $ 3317 % 517 $ 115,186 $ 10688166
Loss allowace (lifetime ECL¥ (112,215 (2,151 (1,547) (240 (114,199 (230,350
Amortized cost $ 10415,723 % 39,057 $ 1,70 $ 277 $ 989 $ 10457,816

December 312021

1to 30 Days 31 to 60Days 61to 90 Days Over 90Days

Not Past Due Past Due PastDue PastDue Past Due Total
Expected crediibss rate 0.55% 4.21% 50.17% 100% 100%
Gross carrying amotn $ 13,047,164 $ 12970 % 3,794  $ 2,486 $ 127,498 $ 13,18,912
Loss allovance (lifetime ECL} (72,047) (546) (1,909 (2,489 (127,88) (204,81)
Amortized cost $ 12975117 $ 12,424  $ 1890 $ - $ - $ 12,989,431
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10.

11.

The movenents of the loss allowanogaccouns recévables were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Balance atJanuaryl $ 204,481 $ 165,722
Add: Net remeasurement of loss alkwee 38,474 38,474
Add: Amounts recovexd 208 565
Less: Anounts written off (12813) (280
Balance aDecember 31 $ 230,350 $ 204,481
INVENTORIES, NET

Deceanber 31

2022 2021
Aircraft spare parts $ 964,991 $ 7,230,203
Items for inflight sale 620,80 616,051
Work in process maintenance services 301,368 534,073

$ 10,568,039 $ 8,380,327

The operating costs for the years ended December 122 and 202included losses from inventory
write-downs 0f$243,088thousad and$731,31thousand, repectively.

NON-CURRENT ASSETSHELD FOR SALE

December 31

2022 2021
Aircraft heldfor sake $ - $ 36,719

To enhance its competitiveness, the @any plans to introduce newircraft and retireold drcraft
according to lamed schedule. Sudircraft, classified apon-current asets held for sale, had an original
carrying amouwnt which washigher than the expected sale price and which was remmjas an impairment
loss and would be continously asessed whether themre further impairmerg in subsequent periods
However, theactual loss shall be identified by thetual saleprice.

Thefair valuemeasuremernis classified as Level 3 antd fair value was determinestcording to snilar
transations of the related arketand the proposedale price were based orthe current status of the
aircraft.

The Company disposed of thiecaaft held for salen 2022andrecognized a gain of $558,4#ousand.
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12. INVESTME NTSACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

December 31

2022 2021
Investments in subsialiies $ 9,390,430 $ 12,147,062
Investments imssociats - -
Investments in joinventures 560,102 682,963

$ 9950,532 $ 12,83,025

a. Investmenin subsidiaries

December 31

2022 2021

Unlisted companies

Tigerair Taiwan Co., Ltd. $ 125747 $ 2,955,99
CAL Park 1,728454 1,656,167
Mandarin Airlines 1,196,733 1,787,3%
CAL -Dynasty hternational 1,359,724 1,169,505
Taiwan Air Cargo Terminal 1,790,921 1,691,853
Taoyuaninternational Aiport Services 424 527 613697
CAL-Asia Investment 617,106 514,959
Sabre Travel Netork (Taiwan) 185,935 190694
CAL Hotel 304,948 335,242
Taiwan Airport Services 102,74 137,378
Dynagy Aeroted International Corp 144,523 147,608
Taiwan Aircraft Maintenanceand Engineering Co., Ltd. 451,322 557,917
Global Sky Express 8,256 7,630
Kaohsung Catering Services 349,89 381,148

$ 9,390,430 $ 12,147,062

At the end of the reportig period, the proportion afwnersip and votingights in subsidiaries helty
the Compmary wereas follows:

December 31

2022 2021
Tigerair Taiwan Co., Ltd. 78% 78%
Taiwan Air Cargo Terminal 54% 54%
CAL Park 100% 100%
Mandarin Airlines 97% 97%
CAL-Dynasty hterndional 100% 100%
Taoyuan Internationag\irport Senices 4% 4%
CAL-Asia Investrent 100% 100%
SabreTravel Network (Taiwan) 94% 94%
TaiwanAirport Services 47% 47%
CAL Hotel 100% 100%
Dynasty Aerotech Imrnational Corp 100% 100%
Taiwan Aircraft Maintenancend Engineering CoLtd. 100% 100%
Global Sky Express 25% 25%
Kaohsiung Cateng Services 54% 54%
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The Company has controlver Taoyuan Internati@al Airport Service, Taivan Airport Service and
Global SkyExpress dgite its ownership of less thd0%. Therefore they were listd as subsidiaries.

Tigerair Taiwan Co., Ltd. planne to issue ordinary shares for cash to meet the needs fds.fliime

board of direcors of the Company approvedetiplan toisswe ordinary shres br cashat $25per share

on August 5, 2021. The Compasybgribed for 1@,212 thousand sheas in September021 The
proportion of ownership of th&roup increased to 8. Becaus the shares vere subscribed at a
percentagalifferert from its existig owneshippecentag , t he Companyds sedt ai |
by $54,449 tbusand.

To strengthen the capitairgcture of Tigerair Taiwan Co., Ltdhe board of directors of the @pany

resolvel the plan to issue ordinarhares forcashon February 13, 228. The Company planned to isse

36,000thousand shareat $25per shareThe total new shares of 85% to be issued wilkblescribed
by the original shareholders in proportiortheir sharelldings as stated in the register of shardecd
on the basiof the slare options.

In addition, Tigerair Taiwan Co., Ltd. appliedf a listing on the Taiwan Innovation Bodrof the
Taiwan Stock Exicangeon December 21, 2022. The board okdiors of theTaiwan Stock Exchage
reviewed the listin@pplicationon Féruary21, 2023. Tie result of th review was approved and it will
be reported to the competenithority.

To strenghen the capital staiure of Mandarin Airlines, the board of dicbrs of the Company
approved the plaio issue ordiary shares for cahat $10per share on August 26021L. TheCompany
subscribed for 199,677 thousand skameSepembe 2021. The propdion of ownership othe Group
increased to 97%. Because the shavere substbed at apercentage diffient from itsexisting
ownershp percentg e, t he C onedeaning desresededy $60,190 thousand

In November 2022 Taiwan Aircraft Maintenancend Engineernig Co., Ltd. madeup a loss of
$140,000 thousandby captal reduction the propotion o ownership of the Companyemained
unchanged.

In December 2022Cal Hotel Co., Ltdmadeup a loss 0f5130,200 thousanbly cagtal reduction the
propotion o ownership of the Compamgmained unchanged.

The liquidaion of Yedrip Co., Ltd. was ompleted on April 222021, andhe Compay recognized a
liquidation loss of $80 thousad.

The share of profit or loss of subsidiariesognizedunder the equity metid was as dllows:

For the Year EndedDecember 31

2022 2021
Share of prfit (loss) $ (2,798,672 $(3,103,D3)

. Investments irassociates

The investments iassotes were sifollows:

December 31

2022 2021
Unlistedcompanies
China Aircraft Services $ - $ -
Dynasty Holidays - -
$ - $ -
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At the end of the reorting period, tle promrtion of ownershipand voting rights in associates held by
the Company wre as flows:

December 31

2022 2021
ChinaAircraft Services - 20%
Dynasty Holidays 20% 20%

The investmen (loss) gainrecognize for asseiates acounted for ugsg the eqity method was as
follows:

For the Year Ended December 3]

2022 2021
ChinaAircraft Services $ - $ (269,573
Dynasty Hoidays - (1,436

$ - $ (271,009

China Airaaft Services issued ordinary shares to meet the needs for fuMargh 2022. The Group
did not participate in the subscriptioso the proportion of ownership of the Group decmrdisen 20%

to 4% and he Group lost signi€ant influence over China Airaft Services. Therefore, the investment
in China Aircraft Servicesvhich was initially classified as investments accounted $imguthe equity
method was reclassified as financialsetsat fair value tlrough other comprelsive income since
March 2022.

Dynagy Holidays was classified as associate accounted for usingquity method. On May 31, 2022,
the provisional shareholded meet i ng was hel d andissohbe &nagdyh ar e
Holidays and the liquidatin process is in progress incaodarce with Japanese regulations.

Investmentsri joint ventues

The investments irjoint ventureswvere adollows:

Deceanber 31
2022 2021
China Racific Catering Services $ 448,222 $ 533,251
China Paific Laundry Service 92,684 120,876
NORDAM Asia 19,1% 28,836
560,102 $ 682,963

At the end of theeporting period, th@roportion of ownership and eting rights injoint venturesheld
by the Companywasas follows:

December 31

2022 2021
China Paific Catering Services 51% 51%
China Pacifidaundry Services 55% 55%
NORDAM Asia 49% 49%
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The Companyenteed intoa joint venture ageement wth Taikoo Comjny to invesin China Padic

Catering Servies and China Pacificaundry Sevices According to the agreement, batideshave the
right to me&e majormotion vetoes othe boardf directors, and thereferthe Company des not hae

contrd.

The investrant (loss) gim recognizedfor joint venturesaccounted for usinghe equity methodwasas

follows:
December 31
2022 2021
China Paific Catering Services $ (104,30) $ (172,549
ChinaPacific Laundry Servies (26,931 (29,418
NORDAM Asia (9,640) (8,93)

$ (140,93) $ (210895)

The Companyds shares of ofdulbséiaries cassciafes @t @inveniuese
were$222,503housandand$4,918thousandor the years ende2D22 and 2021respeciiely.

The nvestments accounted for using the iggunethod and the sha d profit or loss and other
comprehensive income slubsdiaries, assocites, andjoint ventureswere based on tle investees 0
finandal statements whichave been audied

For information onthe major businesseand produts andthe locatons of regitration for the major
business offices of the ab® entities,refer to Tabde 6 (names, locations, and relatedamhation of
investeson which the Company exercises significanfluerce) and Table 7 investment in mialand
Chinafollowing the rotes to thdinancial satements.

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Flight
Freehold Land Buildings Equipment Others Total
Cost
Balance atanuary 12021 $ 181,593 $ 7,033,571 $ 275,604,186 $ 6,564,850 $ 289384,078
Additions - 47,818 1,185,464 468,963 1,702245
Disposals - - (46,086,94) (71,279 (46,158,213
Reclassification - 181818 10,347,647 (166,713 10,362,748
Balance at Bcembe31,2021 $ 181,593 $ 7,263207 $ 241,050,331 $ 6,795722 $ 255,290,853
Accumuateddepreciation
ard impairment
Balance dJanuary 1, D21 $ - $ (3,867,34) $(153,413,84) $ (5,688435 $(162969,616
Depreciatiorexpense - (181,641 (15,776,982 (291,085 (16,249708
Disposals - - 39,169,370 69,765 39,239,B5
Reclassification - - (136,004 (112 (136,116
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ - $ (4,048,982 $(130,157,45% $ (5,909,%7) $(140116305
Balance at December 31, 2021, ndtea  $ 181593 $ 3214,225 $ 110,892,875 $ 885855 $ 115,174,548

(Continued)
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Flight

Freehold Land Buildings Equipment Others Total
Cost
Balance at January 2022 $ 181,593 $ 7,263,207 $ 241,050,381 $ 6,795722 $ 255,290,853
Additions - 46,652 1,539,85 682,21 2,260,028
Disposals - (23,947 (2,770,27) (184,033 (2,978,408
Reclassificaion - - 9,821,276 (6,573 9,814,703
Balance at December 31, 202 $ 181593 $ 7,285912 $ 249,641,035 $ 7,287,636 $ 264,396,176
Accumulateddepreiation
and inpairment
Balance aJaniary 1, 202 $ - $ (4,048982  $(130157456) $ (5,909867)  $(140,116,305
Deprecidion expense - (185841) (14,980,619) (318546) (15,485,06)
Disposals - 23,947 2,453,503 183,8% 2,661,3%
Reclassificéion - - 3,315,902 (110) 3,315,792
Impairment bssegecognized - - (1,641) - (1,647
Balance aDecember 31, 2@ $ - $ (4,210876) $(139,370,31) $ (6,044,63) $(149,625,829
Balance at Decemb8, 2022, netvalue $ 181593 $ 3,075036 $ 110,27Q724 $  1,242999 $ 114,770,532
(Concluded)

Reclassification is mainly radted from the transfer of prepayments for equipment.

Property, plant and egipment are depreciated on a straitihe bass ower the estimged useful lifeof the
asetasfollows:

Building
Main kuildings 4555 years
Others 10-25 years
Machinery ad ejuipmert
Electromechanical equipment 25 years
Others 3-13years
Office equipment 3-15 years
Leaseholdmprovements
Building improvements Syears
Others 3-5years
Flight equipment and equipment under finance &=
Airframes 1825 years
Aircraft cabins 10-20 years
Engines 12-20 years
Heavy mairienance omircraft 6-8 years
Engine overhasl 3-10 years
Landing geaoverhauls 8-12 years
Repairab¢ sparearts 3-15years
Leased aircraft improvements 5-12 years

Refer to Note 3 for the carying amounts of aircraft equipment and rigituse assetpledged by the
Company.

Based on theaticularity of risk in the a&iation industry, all of the € mp a n gefssuchassircraft, real
estate, ath movableproperty are adequatelysured to divesify the potential risk related to operations.

The Companydisposed of a portion of flight equipert and remgnized a loss 0$950,980 thousand for the
three months etiedJune30, 2021.
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14. INVESTMENT PR OPERTIES

December 31

2022 2021
Carlying amount
Investment properties $ 2,047,48 $ 2,047,448

The investment propertiegld by the Gmpany were landdcated in Nankan, which were leaseathers

The fair value of the investmémropertes held by the Companyere both $2,456472 thousand as of
December 312022 and 2021regectively The fair value valuation was perfoed by indepadent
qualified pofessional valuers, and the futurecame evduated by management was based omarket
transactions. All of the Conappy 0 s i emtprepgtiestwere held under freehold interest.

15. OTHER INT ANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Accumulated
Software Costs ~ Amortization Net Value
Balance atdnuary 12021 $ 1,547,787 $ (680,333 $ 867,453
Additions 66,007 - 66,007
Amortization expense - (179,112 (179,111
Balance at December 3021 $ 1,613,794 $ (859,445 $ 754349
Balance &Januay 1, 2022 $ 1,613,794 $ (859,445 $ 754,349
Additions 70,281 - 70,281
Amortization expense - (181,662 (181,662
Reclassification (48,339 59,962 11,628
Balance at Deember 312022 $ 1,635,714 $ (981,145 $ 65496
Theabove items of other intangiblesats are amortized on a straigime basis over-40 yexrs.
16. OTHER ASSETS
December 31
2022 2021
Current
Temporary payments $ 68,140 $ 24,846
Pre@myments 926,426 175,433
Othes 314,246 188,912

$ 1308812 $ 389,191
(Continued)
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17.

December 31

2022 2021
Non-current
Prepaymets for aircrat $ 17,879,206 $ 8,058,743
Prepaymentslongterm 4,009,828 1,116,502
Refundable deposits 409,277 548,674
RestrictedAssets 62,58 -
Other financial assets 14,797 18,497
$ 22375706 $ 9,742,416
(Concluded)

The prepaymestfor aircraft corprised theprepaid @pasits andcapitalized interest from the purchase of
A321ne, B777F andB787-9 aircraft For details of the contract for the purchadédahe aircraft refer to
Note 2.

BORROWIN GS

Longterm Borrowings

December 31

2022 2021
Unsecued kank lbans $ 18550,000 $ 30,850,000
Secued bank loas 29,579243 29,232,586
Commercial paper
Proceeds fim iss@nce 20,4m®,000 25,10Q0000
Less: Unamdized discourts 44,593 26,918
68,484,650 85,155,6%
Less Curent gortion 11,733,508 8,351,129
$ 56,751,142 $ 76,804,516

Interest rates 1.290-1.90% 0.81%1.22%

Secured bank loans asecured by flijht eqipment, referto Note 3.

Bank loans(denominatedri New Taiwan dolles) are repayabk quarterly, semiannuallgr in lump sum
upon maitirity. Therelated infemation is summarized as fols:

December 4
2022 2021
Periods 201610/18 2016/6/27-
2034/10/12 2032/6/30

The Company has note issiea facilities(NIFS) obtaned fom certain financial institubins. The NIFs,
with various maurities untl Septembef026 were used by the Company toi@antee commercial paper
issued.As of Decenter 31, 2022 and2021, such commercial papers were issuat discount ratesf
1.683%-1.9013% and0.985%1.0907% respetively.
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In accorénce with h e eguRtiors on Relief andRevitalizaton Measures for blustriesand Enterprises
Affected by Sever Pneuronia with Novel Pat hogensd endo rTsapsgortation and h e
Communications and t he # OpreRebet LoannGudnteds dorAiinegsAviation Industry
Affected by Sevex Pneumonia with dblvel Patlo g e n s Gogmpanyapplied fora specidloan prgec to
maintain its operation, and the fuatbng with subsidied interestrates were provided by the gomenent.

The total anount of tle loans is $®,350million, which shall berepaid within 2 pas and4 yearsfrom the

18.

date of initialdrawdown. As of Decenber 31,202, the Companyhad made a dradown in the amounaf
$29,350million and repaid $1,300million of the drawdown.

BONDS PAYABLE

December 31

2022 2021
Unsecured aporate bonds firstime issued in 2017 $ 1,000000 $ 1,000,000
Unsecured corporatbonds seondtimeissued in 2017 - 1,300,000
Unsecued corporate bonds firtime issed in2018 3,275,000 4,500,000
Unsecured corporate bamfirsttime issud in 2019 3,500,000 3,500,000
Corvertible bonds sixthtime issuel - 379,284
Convertible bonds senthtimeissua 2,224674 2,970,742
9,999,674 13,65Q0026
Less: Current portion anput option of conugible bond 2,350000 2,525,000
$ 7649674 $ 11,125026
Related issance coditions were as follows:
Rate
Category Period Conditions (%)
Sevenyear pivate unsecuredonds- issued a 2017.0519-  Principal repayable on due 1.75
par in May 2017; repayable on ddate 2024.0519 date; indicatorate;
interest of 1.75% p.a., payable annually payable anually
Five-year private unsecurdmbnds- issued at  2017.10.12  Principal repaablein 1.45
par in Octoler 2017; epayable in Octolie 2022.10.12 October of 2025and 2022;
2021 and 2022; 1.45% interesap.payable indicator rate; payable
annually anrually
Five-year private unsecurdmnds- issued at  2018.11.30  Principal re@yable in 132
par in Novemler 2018; iepayable in 2023.11.30 November of 202 and
Novemler 2022 and 2023; 1.32% interes 2023; indicator rate;
p.a., payable anally payable anualy
Sevenyear private unseced bonds issued 8 2018.11.30  Principalrepable in 1.45
par in Noembe 2018 repayable in 2025.11.8 November o024 and
November 202 and 203; 1.45% interets 2025; indicator rate;
p.a., payablennudly payabé anmially
Five-year private unseced bond - issuedat 2019.06.21  Principal repay#®le inJune ot  1.10
par in line2019;repayable in Jun2023 2024.06.21 2023 and2024; indicator
and 2024; 1.10% interest p.payable rate; payable annually
annualy
Sevenyear private unsecured bogwdissuel at 201906.21-  Principal rpayable in June of  1.32
par n June 201%epayablein June 2025 2026.06.21 2025 and 2026; indator
and2026; 1.32% interest p.a., payable rate; payable annually
annually
(Continued)
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Rate

Categay Period Conditions (%)
Five-year onvertible bonds issued at 2018.01.36  Unless bonds are convertex -
discount inJanuary 218; repayale in lump  2023.0130 share capitl or redeemed
sum upon maturityl.3821% discoumniate principal repayablene
p.a. time in Januaryof 2023
1.38226 discount rate p.a
Five-year cowertible londs- isstedat 2021.04.28 Unlessbhonds areconverted tc -
discount in Aprii 2021; repayable in lump 2026.04.28 sharecapital or redeemed
sum upon maturty; 0.86L2% discount rate principal repayablene
p.a. timein April of 2026;
0.8612% discour ratep.a.
(Concluded)

The Canpany issued the sixth issue tflinsecuredconvertible bonds,ra the issuance aditions were as
follows:

a. The lolders may demandlamp-sum payment fothe bonds upon maiity.

b. The holders can request that thengpany reurchag their tonds atface value on the third anniverga
of the offering date. The holeks can exercisé¢ rigt to sell on Januy 30, 2021.

c. The Companymay redeem the bondst dace value betweeApril 30, 2018 and December 20, 2022
under certain conditions. The Company resolvedto exercisethe right of redemption on Januaryl14,
2022 The referencedate of redenption of the bords s March 9, 2@2 and the actualface valueof
redemptioris $200thousand

d. BetweenApril 30, 2018 andJanuary30, 23 (except for the pedd betveen the former dividend ta
and the dae of the dividend declaratian recard), holders may convether bonds into the Compnyd s
ordinary shaes. The initial conversn price was set at NT$13.2, whichgsbject to adjument ifthere
is a capial injection by cash, share divedddistribution, and the proportion of daslividend pershare
in market pice exceeling 1.5%. Becasethe Company ditributed cash dividendss of July 29, 2019,
the conversion pricevas adjusted tdiT$12.6. As of referencedateof redenption of the bords which
wason March 9 202, a total face value d5,999,800thousand otonvertible bonds s converté
into 476,174thousand ordinary sharekthe Conpany.

The corvertible bonds aatain both liabitty and equity components. Tlegjuity componet waspresented
in equity under the heading of capital surphaptions. Theeffective interest rate fothe liahlity component
was 1.3821% per annuom initial recoqition.

Proceeds from @iance $ 6,012000
Equity component (409,978
Liability component atthe date of issuance 5,602,022
Interestchargecdat an effectiveinterestrate 283,207
Convertible bonds convted into ordinary shares (5,505945H
Liability component at December 31, 2021 379,284

Interestchagedat an effective interestrate 815
Convertible bonds converted imodinary shares (379,901
Redeemed convertiblebonds (198)
Liability comporent atDecembe1, 202 $ -
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The Company issudtie seventh issue ofstuinsecured onvertible bonds, andhe issuance conditiongere
as follows:

a. The holdes may demand aimp-sum payment for the bonds upon matiyr

b. The holdes car request that the Company repursbaheir bonds at face valoa the third anniversgr
of the offeing date. The holdes can exercise the rigtd sell on April28, 2024.

c. The Company mayedeen the bonds at face value betwekiy 28,2021 andMarch 18, 2026 under
certain conditions.

d. Between July 28, 2021nd April 28, 2026 (excepfor the perod betweenthe forme dividend date and
the dateof the dividend declaratio onrecord), hallers may convert thie bondsinto the Canp any 6 s
ordinary share. Tte initial conversion price waset at NT$19 per share, whiés subject to adjustnme
if there & a capta injection by cash or share dividendsttibution. Becaisethe Company dstributed
cashdividendson July12, 2022, the caversion price was adjustéd NT$18.3. As of December 31
2022, a total face value 0$2,211,200 thousand ofcorvertible bonds was coverted into 116,379
thousand ordinary sharebthe Company.

The convertible bondgontan both iability and equity components. The equity compntwas presned
in equity under the heading of capital sugy options. The effetive interest rate of the liability component
was 0.8612% per annum on initial recogmiti

Proceeds fronssuace $ 4,500,000

Equity component (188,862
Liability conrponert at the date of issuance 4,311,138
Interestchargecat an effective interestrate 24,437

Convertible bonds convted into ordinary shares (1,364,833
Liability comporent atDecembe31, 2021 2,970,742
Interestchargecat an effectiveinterestrate 21,211
Convertible bonds convied into ordinaryshares (767,279
Liability comporent atDecembeB31, 202 $ 2,224,674

19. LEASE AGREEMENTS
a. Rightof-use asets

December 31

2022 2021
Carlying amounts
Land $ 326543 $ 3,428,611
Buildings 6,290,368 6,584,959
Flight equipment 43074156 40,951799
Other equipmet 7,521 18

$ 52637480 $ 50,965,378
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For the Year EndedDecember 31

2022 2021
Additions to rightof-use assets $ 13,305,582 $ 7,274961
Depreciation for rightof-useassets
Land $ 183,08 $ 181,729
Buildings 350,840 309,471
Flight equipment 10,737,107 9,762276
Other equipmet 521 30
$ 11271556 $ 10,253,506
. Lease labilities
Decenber 31
2022 2021
Carying amounts
Current $ 1,185,117 $ 882,338
Non-current $ 10,428091 $ 9,677,566

Rangeof discownt rates for lease liabilities(including leases denominated in USD desighats
hedginginstruments):

Decembe 31
2022 2021
Land 0%-1.65% 0.819%1.65%
Buildings 0%-4.65% 0%-2.98%
Flight equipment 0.68%-3.16% 0.68%3.16%
Other equipment 0%-1.3%% 0%

Financialliabilities under hedge accounting

The Companyspecifiesa pat of aircraft leags denominated in USBs hedgng instrumets to avoid
exchange ratéluctuations m passenger r@nue and pplies the accountig treatment of cash flow
hedging. The lease imfmation is as follows:

Maturity Date Subjea Carryin g Value
Decemter 31, 202 2023.2.72034.12.3. Financid liabilities for hedging $ 9,817,440
current
Financialliabilities for hedging - 32,183,170
non-current
December 312021  2022.2.92033.1212 Financia liabilities for hedgig - 8,434893
current
Financial liallities for hedjing - 27,839847
non-current

-41-



Influence of comrehensive incom

Recognized in

Other
Comprehensive Reclassified to
Income (L 0sS) Income
For the year ended December 31, 202 $ (4,111,327) $ 114,59
For the year esiedDecembe 31, 2021 252,250 679554

. Materal leasing actiities and terms

ChinaAirlines lased ten 77800ERplanes,nineteenA330-300 planestwelve 737-800 planesandten
A321neo planes for operati, lease periodare 4 to 16 years from Ebwuary 2007 to Decembe 2034.
The rental pricing methal is partly a fixed anount of funds, ah same of them are floatig rerts,
floating rents are according tmenchmark ratio, the rent is revised every half y®#éhen the lease
expires, the lease agreemtshave m purchase ghts.

The nformaion of refundable aposits andpening of credit ld¢er due to rental of plare

December 31
2022 2021
Refundable deposits $ 270,494 $ 414,720
Credit guarantees 1,658,337 1,29%,594

. Lease greemensigred but notyet deivered

In Odober 2d9, the Corpany sgned a rentalcontract for eight A321lneo with CALC Lease
Corporation, whih is expeded to be deliveredn 2022 to2024. As of Decenber 31, 2022, four
A321reohave been delivered.

The mpany also signed related aircraftghaseagreenent, pleaseafer toNote 2 for details.
Sale and leasebattansactions

In orderto revitalizeassets and strength financial structure, the Comparigred a saleard leaseback
agreement fofive A330-300 with CALC Lease Corporation ilune D21 and Septemb@021. Those
aircraft were sdd for $2,810,098 thousarahd the Company cegnized a los®f $342,080 thousand
The lease term is 4 years withoatewal option or right of first refusalnd theannual lease payments
for each aircrafareUS$4,200 thousanm US$4823 thousand.

. Aircrat leases

In order torevitalize assetdhe Company siged a lease agreentdor two 747400F with US Cargo
Compary in Augug 2021 and September 202The keag commencement datewereJuly 15 2022and
October 10, 2022, spectively.
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20.

21.

h. Other lease information

TheCompany uses operating lease agreatrfer investmert properies, refer to Note 4l

For the Year Ended Decenber 31

2022 2021
Shorttermleasesind lowvalue asset leases $ 67,335 $ 17,347
Total cah outflow for leases $(11,573192 $(10,064,13%

The Company choosés waive the recogrtion of the contract proviens for he shortterm leags ad
low-value asset Bses and does notecognize the relatedght-of-use assets andeaseliabilities for

such lease.

OTHER PAYABLES

December 31

2022 2021
Fud costs $ 4,58,607 $ 3,005,174
Shat-term empbyee beneits 3,765,372 5,513,432
Repairexpenses 1,379,132 1,467,30
Terminal surbarges 901,498 716,531
Ground serice expEnses 781,071 763012
Interest expenses 98,736 82,063
Commission expense 85,140 149,296
Othas 1,694,227 1,168,108
$ 13,265,783 $ 12,865,086
CONTRACT LIABIL ITIE S
December 31
2022 2021
Frequentflyer progams $ 3,179,874 $ 2,797,038
Advance ticketsales 13,358719 1,255,328
$ 16538593 $ 4,052,%6
Current $ 15,257,687 $ 3,416,733
Non-current 1,280,906 635,633
$ 16,538593 $ 4,052366
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22. PROVISIONS

Decembe 31
2022 2021
Operating kases aircraft $ 20,418602 $ 17,808,700
Current $ 3,490,653 $ 2,578,812
Non-current 16,927,949 15,229,888

$ 20418,602 $ 17,808,700

The Conpany leased flight egoment under operating leaseregnents. Under the contracts, when the
leases expire and the equipnent is eturned tolte lessr, the flight equipment has to bepaired accordi
to theexpected pars of use, number of flighotrs,flight cycles and theumber of engine revolution. €h
Compary had «isting obligations to recogmé provisionswhen signing a lese or durig the kase term.

Aircraft Lease

Contracts
Balance at Jamary 1, D21 $ 13,741,244
Additional provisions recognized 5,796,335
Usage (1,476,769
Effectof foreign currencyexchangalifference (252110
Balanceat Deember 31, 2P1 $ 17,808,700
Balance at Jarary 1, D22 $ 17,808,700
Additional provsionsrecognized 4,958,429
Usage (3,690,602
Effect of foreign currencyexchangealifferences 1,342075
Balanceat Decerber 31,2022 $ 20,418,602

23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PL ANS
a. Defined contibution plans

The Company ampted a pension plan under the Labor Pension A®A), whichis a state-managed
defined contribubn plan Underthe LPA, the Compary makes monthy contibutions® e mp |l oy e ¢
individual pension accountd 8% of monthly salarie and wages.

b. Defined baefit plans

The defined benefit plam adoptedoy the Companyin accordance withthe Labor Standds Lawis
operatd by the gawernment of the ROCPensionbenefitsare calculated on thiessis of the length fo
serviceand average monthly salaries of tBemonths before retiement. The Company contribute
amounts equato 15% of total monthly salaries andragesto a penson fund adnmistered by the
penson fund monitorng committee. Pengmocantributions are degsted inthe Bank of Taiwan in the
c o mmi t ane.Bedore tha Bd of each year, the Compaagsesses the laace in the pension fund.
If the amount ofthe balarce inthe pasion fund is inadecate topay retiement benefits formeployees
who conform toretirement requirements in the next year, the @amy s requiredto fund the
difference in oneappropriationtha should be made before the end March of the net year. The
pension fund is maged bythe Burea of Labor Funds, Miistry of Labor (t h e urefaB) the
Company has no right to influence theegment poliy and strategy.
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The amountséncluded in tle balance sheets in respect of theoGn p asrdefiried beneft plans were as

follows:

Presentvalue of definedenefit dbligation
Fairvalue of pan assets

Net defined benefit liabilies

Movements imet ddined benefit liabilitiesvere adollows:

Balance afanuaryl, 221
Sevwice cost
Current grvicecod
Net interest expense (inomé
Remgnized in profit ordss
Remeasuement
Return o planassetgexcluding amounts
includedin netinterest)
Actuarial loss- changesin demographic
assumptios
Actuarial loss- changes in finacial
assurptions
Actuaial loss- experience adjusnents
Recognizedn other comprehensiviacome
Contributions fron theenployer
Berefits paid
Direct paymehto empbyees
Exchamye differenceson foreign plans
Balance at Decaber 31, »21
Servicecost
Currentservicecost
Net interest expense (income)
Recognized in profit ooss
Remeasurement
Retumn on planasses (excuding amounts
included in net interest)
Actuarial gain- changes in finacial
assumptions
Actuarid loss- experience adjusments
Recogizedin other comprehensive inote
Contributions from themployer
Benefits paid
Directpaymerit to empbyees
Exchange differenceson foreign plans

Balan® at Decmber 31, 22

Decemler 31
2022 2021
$ 15,802,396 $ 14,958,292
(7,454,233 (6,599,103
$ 8,348163 $ 8,359,189
Presen Value Net Defined
of the Defined Benefit
Benefit Fair Value of Liabilities
Obligation the Plan Assets (Assds)
$ 14,458.06 $ (6,240,62) $ 8,217.35
1,169,022 - 1,169,022
47,178 (20,267 26,911
1,216,200 (20,267 1,195,933
- (92,879 (92,879
379,091 - 379,091
(452370 - (452370
201,665 - 201,665
128,386 (92,879 35512
- (951,768 (951,768)
(706,427 706427 -
(123,638 - (123,638
(14,245 - (14 .245)
14,958,292 (6,599,103 8,359,189
1,079984 - 1,00,984
98,312 (43,772 54,540
1,178,206 (43,772) 1,134524
- (506,426 (506,426
(773074 - (773,079
1,250,610 - 1,250610
477,536 (506426 (28,8M)
- (982,04) (982,04)
(677,1®) 677109 -
(161,579 - (161579)
26,960 - 26960
$ 15,802396 $ (7,454,233 $ 8,348163
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Through the defined benefilgms underthe LaborStandardsAct, the Compny is exposg to the
following risks:

1) Investment sk: Theplan asets are invested irdomesic and breign eqity and debtsecuities,
bank deposits, etcThe investent is coducted at the discretion of dfBureau o under tke
mandated managemeitowever,in accordancewith relevantregulations, the ratn gereratel by
plan assets shouldot be below he interesrate for awo-year time deposit with lot®arks.

2) Interestrisk: A decrease in the govenent bondinterest ate will increase the psent value fothe
defined kenefit obligation; howeverthis will be patially offset by anincrease in tle return o the
p | adelitisvestments.

3) Salary rsk: The present valueof the defined benefit obligain is catulatedusng the future salaries
of plan parttipants.As sud, an ncrease in the salas of he phn participants will ircreasethe
preent valueof the defired bemrfit obligation

The atuarial valuaions of the present value of the defthéenefit obligation were carried out by
qualified actuargs. The significant asumptions used for éhpurpsesof the atuarial valuabns are as
follows:

December 31

2022 2021
Discount rae 1.28% 0.68%
Expected rate of salary increase 1.00% 1.00%

If possible reasonable chaegyin each of he significant actuaral assumption®ccur am al other
asumptiongemainconstat, the pesent value of thdefined benefit obligatin will increase(deceasg
as follows:

December 3
2022 2021

Discount rate

0.25% increase $ (306,@6) $ (317393

0.25% decrase $ 321,327 $ 331,820
Expected rate afalry increase

0.5% incease $ 627,353 $ 634,785

0.5%decrease $ (596,75) $ (605,93}

The above sensitivity analysismay not le repesentative bthe atual chaiges in the present vaduof
the ddined ben€fit obligation asit is unlikdy thatchangsin assumgbnswill occur in isolabn of one
arother as some of the assumptions magdreelated

Decemler 31
2022 2021
Expected comibutionsto theplanfor the next year $ 862,222 $ 766,7®
Average durationfahe ddined benefit oblyation 8.4years 9 yeas
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24, EQUITY

a. Share capital

Ordinary shares

December31l
2022 2021
Number d& sharesauhorized (in thousandsf shaeg 7,000,000 7,000,000
Amount of sharesauthorized $ 70,000,000 $ 70,000,000
Amount ofsharesssued $ 60,135,374 $ 59,412,243

The Companyssued tle 6th andthe 7thdomesticunsecured convertible ¢nds,andthe hoters of tre
corvertible bonds aged for corverson in the amount of$1,178,600 thosand and$7,032,40
thousand dr the years endedecember 31202 and2021. The number bordinary hares exchanged
were 72,313 thousant@520,39 thousad respetively and compktedthe registréion of the in equity
aftertheissuamce of new shares.

b. Capital surplus

Decembe 31
2022 2021

May be used to ofet adeficit, distributed as cash dividends, ¢

transfered to slre capital (1)
Isswarce of convertible bondsn excess of paralueand

conversion premium $ 2,092,81 $ 1,668,381
Dividend distributed to subsidiaries 1,725 -
Expired equity component of convertible bonds 929,535 869,82
May only be use to of'set a deifcit (2)
Long-term investmats 547 540
May notbe used for any purpose
Equity compnent of convertitd bonds 96,073 155,676

$ 3,120,311 $ 2,694,529

1) Such capital surplusnay ke usedo offseta deficit; when he Company has no dei, such capital
surplus may be dtributed as cash dividends or transferred to share capital (limitecdcédan
peg centage of the Companyyea). capital surplus a

2) Such cajtal surplusarises fom the effects ofchanges in ownershipterests in subsidiaries

resultingfrom equity transactions other than actual disposals or acquisitiofrerorchange in
capital surplus of subsidiaries accounted for ustiegequity method.
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c. Appropiiation of earnings andlividend policy

Under tle Compay Act, where the Company mad profit in a fiscal year, the profit shak Hirst
utilized for payirg taxes, offsetting losses of previous years, setting aside akrieggrve 10% of the
remaning profit, seting aside or regrsing a special rese inaccordance with the laws arejulations,
and then any remaining profit taher with any unditributed retaned earnings shall be used by the
Company6s b oraasdhe bakis far iprogang tdistribution plan, which isto distribute
dividends andoonus no less than 50% oktihemaining profit and undistributed retainedrengs. The
dividends andonusmentioned above can be distributed in the form of new sbash, and the cash
dividendsshould beno less than 30%f the total divideds. If surplus earnings are distrileal in the
form of new shares, the distributiaf shares shall dresolvedin the shareholde®meeting if such
earnings areidtributed in the form of cash, thesh digribution shall be authorized aftea resalition

has been adopted by a majority vatea meeting of the board of diters attended byato-thirds of the
total number of directors; and in addition, a report afhsdistribution shall be submitted tthe
shareholderémeding. If the Companyas ndoss,according to laws and regulatiorise Companycan
distribute its capitareserve, in wha or n part by issuing new shares or cash based on financial,
businesandmanagement considerations. If Buwapitl reservds distributed in the fom of new shaes,

it shall beresolvedby a meetig ofthe shareholdersf sud capitd reserves didributed in the form of
cash, it shall be authorized after a reoluhas been adopted by a majority voteaaheeting of the
board of directorsattendd by two-thirds of the total number of directorand in addition thereto a
report of such distbutionshal be submitted to the sharehol der

The distibution of dividends should be resolved and reciagd inthe shaeholder s 6 ting i éhe
following year

1) Appropriation of earnings in21

The appropriation of earnings in 2021 which wesolved and recogni zed in
meeting on May 26, 2028 as follows:

Appropriation  Dividends Per
of Earni ngs Share (NT$)

Legal rseve $ 925,385 $ -
Cash dividends 5,000000 0.83145736

2) Appragoriation ofearnings in 202

The appropriation of earnings in 2022, which were proposed&yCtimp any 6 s boar d o
on March 92023,were asdllows:

Appropriation  Dividends Per
of Earni ngs Share (NT$)

Legal reserve $ 305,592 $ -
Specialreserve 534,375 -
Cash dividends 2,772,207 0.46099444

The appopriation of eanings in 202 is subjectto the resolution of the shardoldersin their
meetng on May 31, 2023.
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Othe equity items
The maement ofother eqity itemswereas follows:

Exchange
Differences on
the Translation
of the Fnancial Unrealized Gain

Statements of (Loss)on Gain (Loss) on
Foreign Financial Asses Hedging
Operations at FVTOCI Instruments Total
Balance aJahuay 1, 2021 $ (134,22) $ 71,359 $ 2,606659 $ 2,543,766

Exchange differeres on the

translation of thdinancid

statements of freignoperatons 17,97 - - 17,597
Cumulative gain (0s9 on changes

in fair value of hedging

instruments - - 861,256 861,25%
Cumulative loss orchanges in fail

value of hedging instruments

reclassified to prdit or loss - - (672,302 (672,303
Unrealzedgain (los9 on financial
assets at FVTOCI - (91,703 - (91,703

Shareof other compehersive
income(loss)of asociatesand
joint venturesaccounted for

using the equity method 95 (4,161 1,992 (2,079
Effects of inome tax (3,519 18,993 (57,68B) (42,219
Other comprehensive income

(loss) recognizedh the period 14,173 (76,879 133,53 70,555
Transferedto initial carrying

amount ofhedgedtens - - 99,507 99,507

Balance at Demmber31, 2021 $ (120,079 $ (5,519 $ 2,839,419 $ 2,713,828

Balance &Jawary 1, 202 $ (120,079 $ (5,519 $ 2,839,419 $ 2,713,828
Exchange dferences on the

transldion of the firancial

staterments of foreignoperations 141,415 - - 141415
Cumulative gainlfs9 on changes

in fair value of hedging

instruments - - (4,086,411} (4,086,41})
Cumulatve loss orchanges infair

value of hedging instruments

redassifiedto profit or loss - - (199,639 (199639
Unrealzed gain o finarcial assets
atFVTOC - 8,570 - 8,570

Shareof other compehersive
income(loss)of asociatesand
joint venturesacacountedfor

usingthe equitymethod 2,649 46,386 165 49,200
Effects of income &x (28,283 (8,529 774,784 737,975
Other comprehensive income

(loss) recognizedh the period 115,781 46,430 (3,511,10) (3,348,8M)
Transferredo initial carying

amount ofhedgedtems - - 100,687 100,687
Balance at Decembéd, 2022 $ (4,299 $ 40,918 $ (570,995 $ (534,375
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e. Treasury share

Treasiry sharesare theComp a rs ghare heldby its subsidiries, as of the reporting date and ass

follows:

Period of Treasury Shares

Forthe yar ended [Rcember3l, 202
For the yar ended Decendy 31, 2021

Subsidiary

December 31, 202

Mandaiin Airlines

December 31,2021

Mandarin Airlines

Number of
Shares,
Beginning of
Year

2,075

2,075

SharesHeld by
Subsidiaries
(In Thousands
of Shareg

2,075

2,075

The above acquisitions by subsides of thre Compang s
invegmentplanning. The stares of the Companyeld by its subsidiaies were treated asetisury shase

The subsidiaries can exeri s e

sulscribe fo the @ mp asmgv&hares and voting rigts.

25. NET INCOME

a. Revenue

Pasenger
Cargo
Others

b. Otherincome

Interest itome
Dividend inmme
Others
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(In Thousands ofShareg

Reduction
During the
Year

Carrying
Amount

$ 39,418

$ 57,156

Number of
Shares,End of
Year

2,075

2,075

Market Value

$ 39,418

$ 57,156

es hnaevious years was due to

s h ar e h othest&raasuy sharésg dxeept fomthght to

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
$ 20,479,214 $ 3,433,751
115,864041 124 249,632
4,726,59% 4,456,865
$ 141,069,849 $ 132140248

For the Year Ended December 31

2022

$ 566,465
11,723
720,343

$ 1,307531

2021

$ 132220
8,35
234,050

$ 374,625



In 2002,CAA terminated the leasing of saircraftwith the Compary ona unilateral bds, which arose
from several litigation btween the Company and CAA. Because the aircraft leases werpaethn
advance, the property of aircraft leasing from financiatdeirns to operating lease. The@mting
basis isdifferent between these wtti causd the situation of overpaid rentaherefore, in 2016, the
Company sued CAA for an approximate amioof $1,200 million. The Company lost the case in the
first and seond instances, and won the partled caseafter renandingin the third instane

Supenme court dismissed the appealdaaffirmed the conviction that CAA should pay back the
principalamaunt with interest.

CAA has paid the abovementionezinountin Octdoer 2022.The Company recognizettie amountof
$288million as other incomeothersin 2022.

Othergairs and losses

For the Year Ended December 3:

2022 2021

Gain (losg on disposal property, plarand equipmen $ 19911 $ (932,718
Netforeignexchangeyairs (losse9 1517582 (123,679
Impairmentlossrecaynized on investmentccountedor using

equitymethod - (136672
Impairment loss recognied on property,plantandequipment (1,641) -
Loss ondisposal of invetmens - (540
Gain ondisposal ofnoncurrent assetéeld forsale 558,477 -
Lossarising fromsale and leasebatiansactions - (342,080
Others (269,435 (436,219

$ 1,824,894 $ (1,971,900

. Finarce costs

For the Year Ended Decenber 31

2022 2021
Interestexpensg
Bonds payable $ 156,189 $ 262,951
Bank loans 749,735 624420
Interest on lease liabilitie 1,311226 1,276,8@
Loss arising from derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in cah flow hedge acounting redtionshifs
reclassified from equity to pfit or loss 3,810 -
$ 2220960  $ 2,164,174
Capitalization inérest $ 176,264 $ 42,440

Captalization rate
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e. Depreciation and anortizaion expenses

For the Year Ended December 3.

2022 2021
Progerty, plart and equipment $ 15485,006 $ 16,249,708
Right-of-use assets 11271,556 10,253,506
Intangible assets 181,662 179,11
$ 26,938,224 $ 26682,325
An anaysis of depreciatin by function
Operating cos $ 26,150,203 $ 25933,079
Operating #penses 606,359 570,135
$ 26,756,562 $ 26,903,214
An analyss of amortizéion by function
Operding expenses $ 181,662 $ 179,111

Employee beefits expense

For the Year Ended December 2

2022 2021
Postemployment benefits
Defined contributiorplan $ 331,7G8 $ 330826
Defined bentt plan 1,134524 1,195,938
$ 1466227 $ 1,526,759
Otheremployeebenefits
Sahry experses $ 14,498,508 $ 16,170,192
Labor and health insuranegpenses 1,236,490 1,148,603
Persmnel service expenses 3,268,895 3,732,060
$ 18,998,893 $ 21,050,854
An analysis of eployee lenefits expense Hynction
Operating costs $ 16,538,596 $ 17,9%0,614
Openting expense 3,926,524 4,616,999
$ 20,465120 $ 22,57,613

According to theCompanys arttles, the Corpary accues compensation of employeegatesof no
less tha 3% of the net profit befe income tax and cormpenstion of empbyees.Whenthe Compaly
hasan accunulateddeficit, the Companyshall setasidesonme amountsto offset the deficit in advance
For theyea endedDecembei31, 2022 and 2@1, the estimatel amount ofcompensatiorof empbyees
were$120,275 an®366,49 thousand

Material difference bdween such estimated amounts and #mounts pragsed by the bard of
directorson or before thedatke tha the anmal financialstatemets ae auhorized forissue areadusted
in the yearthat he compensatiorand emunerdbn are recognized. If there ia change in the proposed
amounts aér the annudlinancial staementsare authaized for issue the differernces @&e recorded s1.a
chang intheaccounting stimate.
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Information on the aopenséon of employeesesdved bythe Compa y 6 s
and 2@1is available at the Market Obsetizan Pog System website of the Tawan Stock Exhange.

26. INCOME TAX

a.

Incometax recogrized inprofit or loss

Major components oihcome tax expenseavere adollows:

Current tax
In respect of arrent year
Adjustments for prior year
Deferred &x
In respect of arrent year
Adjustments for prior year

Income tax expense recognizedprdit or loss

For the Year Ended Decenber 31

boarssin2ani2 di

2022 2021
$ 198649 $ 2,9%,770
24,169 7,846
(889,534) (331,893
(13,885 (8,687
$ 1,029399 $ 2,594,035

A recondliation of accounting ofit and incometax expenseis as folows:

Profit before taxfrom continuingoperations

Incometax expense céculated at the stattory rae
Effectsof adjugmertsto incometax

Nondedutible expenses in determining taxakilecome
Tax-exemp income

Overseasincome tx expense
Unrecognizeddeductible temporary tferences
Adjustmers for prioryarsd t a X

Adjustmentdor prior yeardeferral tax

Income tx expenseecognized in profit bloss

Incometaxrecagnizedin other canprehense income

Deferred tax

Recognized in dher canprehensive income
Trarslation d foreign operations
Fair value chagesof hedging instruments for cashlow
hedges
Remeasuremerdf defined benefit plas
Fair valuechanges of financiassets aEVTOCI

Total incometax recogized in othecomprehensie income
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For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
$ 3,888,902 $ 11973,940
$ 777,780 $ 2,394,788
621,251 695,244
(372,693 (541,81)
48,128 33,815
(55,%1) 12,510
24,169 7,846
(13,885 (8.687)
$ 102939 $ 2594035

For the Yea Ended Deember 31

2022

$ (28,283
774,784
(5,779
(8.526)

$ 732,197

2021

$ (3,519
(57,693

7,102
18,993

$ (35,117

r



c. Defeared bx asetsand liabilities

For the year ended December 31, 202

Recwognized in
Other
Opening Recognized in Comprehensive Closing
Balance Profit or Loss Income Balance
Deferred aix asses
Temporay differences
Defined erefit obligations $ 1,698,141 $ (9,869 $ (5,779 $ 1,682495
Frequent flyer program 583272 67,078 - 650,3®
Maintenancaesive 2,288,073 108056 - 2,396,129
Allowance forimpairment
loss ofinventries 280,131 14,726 - 294,857
Unrealizedforeignexchange
losses - 340,127 - 340,127
Others 384,687 324677 (17,517 691853
$ 5234304 $ 8447% $ (23,289 $ 6,055,811
Deferred taxiabilities
Temporary differaces
Unrealizedforeign exchage
gains $ 58623 $ (58,623 % - $ -
Others 763,745 - (755,86) 8,259
$ 822,38 $ (58623 $ (755489 $ 8,259
For the year ended December 31, 2021
Recognized in
Other
Opening Recognized in Comprehensive Closing
Balance Profit or Loss Income Balance
Deferred tax asts
Temporay differences
Defined lenefit obligations $ 1,656,388 $ 34651 $ 7,102 $ 1,698,141
Frequent flyer programs 547877 35,395 - 583,272
Maintenance eserve 2,359334 (71,261 - 2,288,073
Allowance forimpairment
loss ofinventoties 253209 26,922 - 280,131
Others 165,051 230,398 (10,762 384,687
$ 4,981859 $ 256,105 $ (3,660 $ 5,234,394
(Coninued)
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Recognizel in

Other
Opening Recognized in Comprehensive Closing
Balance Profit or Loss Income Balance
Deferred axliabili ties
Temporary diffeences
Unrealized foreign exchaye
gairs $ 143,100 $ (8447 % - $ 58623
Others 732,288 - 31,457 763,745
$ 8753838 $ (84,47 $ 31,457 822368
(Corcluded)

Dedudible temporay differenesfor which no dderred tax assets have beenagwmized in the balance

sheetavere asfollows:

Others

December 31

2022 2021
$ 6,200,000 $ 6,476,759

d. Asof DecembeB1,2022, the Companyhasno unusedosscarryforwards.

e. Incometax assesmerns

Theincome taxreturns of the @mpanythrough2020 have been exainedby thetax authorities.

27. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per shaildT$ pershare)

Diluted eamnings pershare(NT$ per share)

Net Profit for The Year

Earnings useth the computatio of basic earnings per share
Effectof potentidly dilutive ordinary shares:
Interest on convetttle bond (after tax)

Earnings ued in thecomputation of diluted earninggpshare
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For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
$ 048 $ 167
$ 047 $ 154
For the Year Ended De@mber 31
2022 2021
$ 2,859503 $ 9,379,905

21,415 72,638

$ 9,452,543

$ 2,880,918



28.

Theweightedaveaagenumberof ordinay shaesoutstanding (in thousands of shareywasasfollows:

For the Year Ended December3l

2022 2021

Weighted agragenumber ofordinary shares used the

conputation of lasic earnings pehare 5,996,406 5,615,684
Effect of ptentially dilutive odinaly shares:

Compensatiorof empbyees 9,155 13,300

Convertible bods 137708 512,144
Weighted aeragenunber of ordinary saresused in the

computation of diluted eaings per share 6,143,269 6,141,128

The Conpary may sdtle the compensatn of employeesin cash o shares,therefore,the Company
assimes thd the entire amount of theompensatin will be settled in lsares, and the resultingptential
shareswill beincluded in he weightedaverage nmbe of shaes outdanding used in the computabn of
diluted earningper shareasthe efiect isdilutive. Such dilutiveeffect ofthe potential slaresis included in
the computation of diited earningper share untithe numbe of sharego be distributedto empoyees is
relved in thefollowing year.

CAPITAL MANA GEMENT

The Caonpany mageges ts capital ® ensure thatit will be ableto continue asa going cncernwhile
maximizing the return tohareholders thraigh the optimizatiomf the debtand equty bdance. The capital
structure of the Company consists of debt(borrowings ofsetby cash andcash egivalents) and guity
of theCompany(comprisingissued capital, resees retained earningsndother equiy items).

To suppor operding activities aml puchaseof aircrdt, the Company neede maintain suffient capital.
Therefore the goal of capitalmanagement i® ensurdhat financial resoures and operating plas able to
support the futurevorking capital, capital expndtures, debt repayment dividend paymentsand other
needsn the next 12 months

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Fairvalues 6financial ingsrumentsnot measured at fair e

December 31

2022 2021
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Finarcial liahlities
Bonds payable $ 9,999,674 $ 10,313,545 $ 13,650026 $ 14,557830

Leas liabilities and longterm borrowings are flodingrate financial liabilities, saheir carying
amounts are #ir fair values Fairvaluesof bonds payable trading in OTC e based on quoteaharket
prices Level1).
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b. Fair valueof financial indruments measured at fairlua on a rearring basis

The following table provides an analysifinarcial instrumerts that are measured s@iseqientto initial
recognition at fair value, grouped inteevels 1to 3 based o the aégree b which the fair vale is
observable

1) Level 1 fair valuemeasurements are those derived fraquded prices (unadjsted) in actve
markes for identical asds a liabilities;

2) Level 2 fair value reasuremerst arethose deried from inpus otler than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observablerfthe asset or liability, either dictly (i.e, as prices)or
indirectly (i.e., derivedfrom prices);and

3) Level 3fair value measurements dtese ddawed from valuaton techniqus thatincludeinputs for
anasset or lihility that are not based on absable market data (unobservable ug)

Decamber 31, 202

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financid assets at FVTOCI
Investmets inequity instruments

Unlisted shares- domestic $ - $ - $ 41,128 % 41,128
Unlisted shares foreign - - 22,900 22,900
$ - $ - $ 64,028 $ 64,028
Finarcial assets for hedging $ 3987730 $ 49 $ 38,997 $ 4,03,6&
Financial labilities for hedging $42,00,610 $ 117,85 $ 55,758 $ 42,173,863

Decmber 3, 221

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Finandal assets at FVTOCI
Investmens in equity istruments

Unlisted sares- domestic $ - $ - $ 28,804 $ 28,804
Unlisted shares foreign - - 26,654 26654
$ - $ - $ 55458 $ 55458
Financialassets fohedging $ 3545706 $ - $ 17,613 $ 3,563,319
Financial liabilities for hedging $36,2714740 $ - $ 2,755  $ 36,277,495

There vere no tansfes between Level 1 and2 in the curent period.
4) Valuation tediniques and ingts applied foLevel 2 fair value measument

Financial Instruments Valuation Technigues and Inputs

Derivative The fair values of devatives (excepfor options) have ben
deternined basedn discounte cash fow analygsusing
interestyield curves applicablfor the duration bthe
dernvatives The estimags and ssunptionsthat the Conpany
used to detemine the fair values are identida those used it
the piicing of financialinstrumens for marketpaticipants.
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5) Valuation techrmjues and inputs appliddr Level 3 fair \alue measirement

The fair values ofcurrency optionsrad fuel options andswg are deterrimed usng option picing
models where theignificant unolservableinputs are impliedfluctuaion. Changs in the implied
fluctuation usedn isolation would result in a increaseor decrease ithefair value ofthe currency
optionsandfuel optionsandswap

The dmedic and faeign unlisted equityinvestmerd are basel on the comparativeconpany
valuationto estimde the fir value. The mim assimptions are based ohne mdutiplier of the market
price of the comparable tisd conpany and thenet value pershare which have consilered the
liquidity discount. Thehigher he multplier or thelower the liquidity discoun, the hgher the fair
value ofthe relevant financlanstruments

The multipler and liquidity discount of financial instrums based on Level 3 fair value
measurement were as follows

Liqu idity

Multiplier Discount
Decemler 31, 202 0.79-10.39 80%
December 31, 2021 0.74-14.31 80%

The movemerstof financial instrumentbased o Level 3fair value meas@mentwere as Pllows:

Derivative Equity

Instruments Instruments
Balance atlanuaryl, 202 $ 6,124 $ 55,458
Recognked in other compmhensve income (22,885 8,570
Balance at December 31,20 $ (16,761 $ 64,028
Balance at Jauary 1, 202 $ - $ 147,161
Recogiizedin other comprehensgve income 6,124 (91,703
Balance abecembe 31,2021 $ 6,124 $ 55,458

Because somerfancial instrumentsnd nonfirancial instruments may not Ve their fair values
disclosed the totalfair value disclosé heein is not the total value ofthe Comp a n golfestive
instrunents

-58-



c. Categaies d financial instrumats

December 31

2022 2021

Financal assets

Financial assetof hedging $ 4,03,662 $ 3,563,319
Finandal assets aamartized cost(Note 1) 44114,404 50,202,213
Financialassés atFVTOCI - investmensin equity instrumers 64,028 55,458
Financd liabilities

Financial liabilitiesfor hedging 42173,863 36,277,4%
Financialliablitiesatamorized cost (Note 2 126,090,173 142057713

Note 1: The balaces nclude fnancial &sets measad at amdized cost, which amprise cah and
cash eqivalents,time depositswith origind maturities of more than 3months,notes and
acounts receiable, accounts eeivable - related parties, dhe recevables, refundable
depositsaand otherestrictedfinancial assets.

Note 2: The balance include financial liabilities measuredat amortizedcost which comprise
shortterm borrowings notes and accouts payable, ecounts pagble - related parties other
payables, borglpayalte, longterm borrowings lease liabilies, provisions, @ts of oher
current labilities, parts of othenoncurrent liabilities and garanteedeposits.

d. Financial risk managenent objectivesand policies

The @mpany hasrisk managment andhedging strateges to respnd to chages in the eonomicand
finandal envirorment and in le fuel market. To redudhe finartial risks fom changs in nterest
exchange ratesand in fuel prices, the Compay has itsopeiting costs stg within a specifiedrange by

using appropria¢ financial hedging infuments and hedgg percentges in accorance with the
i Pr oc @mgdamnbderivative Financid Instrumert Transations @pproved by the Companys

shareholderdo redue the impact of market ptice on eamings These riks include marke risk

(includingcurrency risk, iterest rateisk and otler price risk), credit risk angyuidity risk.

In addiion, the Gmpany haarisk committee, which meets periodicallio evaluae the performanceof
derivative instruments and deermine the apmpriate hedgingoercentageThis canmittee informs the
Compmany of global economic and fineid conditions controk the atire financal risk reaulting from
changes in the finanal ervironmert and fuel prices, ad developghe strategy ad response to and
financial rik with the assistace of finencial risk exerts to effect risk management

1) Market risk

The Conpany & pimarily exposed to the inancial risks of changes inofeign curerncy exchange
rates andinterestrates The Compay entered intalerivative finandal instruments tananage its
exposure tdoreign currency risk and intestrate risk. The Compan entes into foreign exchage
forward contracts, foeign currency option contrés; ad interes swap contacts with fair values
that are hyhly negativelycorrdated to the dir values of hedgd itemsand evaluatethe hedging
effeciveness offtese insumentsperiodically.
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a) Foreigncurrercy risk

The Company enters intéoreign currercy option to hedge gainst the risks of chnges in

related exchangeates,and entersnto foreign excharg forwardcontracts tchedge against the
risks a1 changes inforeigncurrency assts, labilities and commitmentsin the relatedexchange

rates

Sengtivity analysis

The Company was mainly &posed to th U.S. dollar.

An increase/deease inU.S. dollars one dollaragainst New Taiwan dbiars when reportg
foreign currency risk intenally to key managmen peronnd r e pr esent s ma n
asessmat of the reasmably possble chage in foreign exchamgrates. Thsersitivity analysis
included only otstandingforeign currency denominatiemonéary items and adjuts ther
translaion at theend of the repating period for U.S. dollars increasdécreas by one dadlar
aganst New Taiwan dollarsin foreigncurrency rées.When New Taiwardollars incrasedone
dollar against U.S. dollarsnd all oher variable were hkl condart, there vould bea decrease
in pre-tax profit and an inpease h pre-tax other comprédiensive incora for the year endel
December 31202 of $254,789 thousand andbl,131,220, respectivelyanda decrese in
pre-tax profit and an ingease h pretax other compréiensie incane for the year ended
December 312021 of $401,972 thesand ad $1,181,5& thousad, regectively.

TheCompany s  mgstiageigys to enter intodreign exchangérward contractsandforeign
currency optinsto avoid exchangeate exposure of its forégn currency deominated receipts
and payments and tmamge &change ratexposureof its aircraf pre@myments in nextyear,
and managing the mix ot).S. dollar revenue and U.S. dollar leaspenseshosetransactios
are desigated as cash flow hdges. When forecased purcheses actually take place, basis
adustmerts are mad#o the intial carrying amounts of liged itens.

For the hedges of highly iobable aircraft preganents asthe critical terms(i.e., the notional
amount, gsefd life andundelying as®t) d the foreign currency optionsontractsand foreign
exchange forard contacts and their coresponding hedged items aletsame, th€ompany
performs a qualative assessment of the effe@ness, ait is expectedtha the vdue of the
foreign cumency options and foreign exchange forwaratontractsand he vale of he
corregponding hedged itens will systematidéy changein the opposite déction in response to
movementsn the underling exchangeates.

The followingtablesunmarizes the information relaing to the hedges of foreign cency risk
Please regér toNote 19for aircraft rentalcontracs for hedgng.

Decenber 31, 202

Notional Line ltem in Carrying Amou nt

Hedging Instruments Currency Amount Maturi ty Forward Rate Balance Shet Asset Liability
Cas flow hedge
Aircraft prepayment NTD/USD  NTD3,312883 20231.19 29.531.9 Financid assets for hedging $ 4,935 $ 110,58
forward exchange USD108000 20236.30 current/liabiliti es for

contracts hedying - currert

The abovenentioned hedging indrumentsapplied hedge accountingfhe book value of otr
equity foreach ledgng item(aircraft prepaymerin U.S. dolars) was$(105628)thousand
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b)

For the yenendedDecembe31, 202

Hedging Gain Amount
(Los9 Reclassified to
Rewmgnized in  Profit and L oss
Other and the
Comprehendgve Adjusted Line
Comprehensgve Income Income Item
Cash fow hedge
Aircraft prepayments $ (104,689 $ -

For the yearended Deembker 31 2022, the amount of heging instrument settfaents
recognized as aircrgfirepaymets were $(939) thousand.

December 312021

Notional Line Itemin Carrying Amou nt
Hedging Instruments Currency Amount Maturi ty Forward Rate Balance Sheet Asset Liability

Cash flowhedge
Aviation fuel - forward NTD/USD $ - - - Financial assetlor hedging- $ - $
exchange contracts current/lialiliti es for
hedging- current

The abovemenioned hedging instumens amlied hedgeaccounting. The book valueof other
equity foreach hedigg item(aviation fuel in U.S. dollars) was0b

For the year ended Decéer 31, 2021

Hedging Gain Amount
(Los9) Reclassfied to
Reaognized in  Profit and Loss
Other and the
Comprehensve Adjusted Line
Comprehensivelncome Income ltem
Cash fow hedge
Aviationfuel $ 5,794 $ (6,849

Interest rate risk

The Companyentes ino interestrate swap cotracts to hdge againstthe riskson change in
interest radesof long-term borrowings. Th€ompanywas eyosedto interest rate riskdrause
entities in theCompanyborrowed fundat both fixed and flating inteest rates.

The risk is managed by t@ompanyby maintairing an appropriate miof fixed andfloating
rateborrowings, andising interesrate swajgoriracts

The carrying amont of theConpan y 6 snddl lialiliges with exposure to terest ratestahe
end of the reporting period were as follows.

Decemler 31
2022 2021
Fair value interest rae risk $ 52,000,283 $ 49,924766
Cash fbw interest rate risk 80,097918 95,715,939
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Sersitivity amalysis

The sengivity analyss below vasd et er mi ned b as e dexposare toriteest Co m
ratesfor boh deriwatives ad non-derivaive instrumens atthe end of the repeting perod. For
floating rate liabilities, the andysis was prep&d assuimg the amount ofthe liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting penaabs outstandig for the whe year A one yard

(25 bags pointg increase ordeceasewas ugd when epating interest rate risk terrally to key
management personneénd repeseits ma n a g assessménd ahe reaonably possible
change in interest tes

Had inereg rates ncreasedby oneyard (25 bass pointg and dl other variables been held
constint, h e C o mp a-tay @adt foptheeyear erded December 13 202 would have
decreaseby $200,245thousand.

Had interest ratemcreased by e yard 25 basispointg and & other variables been held
consta, t h e Co mp #ar prditsfor the year ered December 13 2021 vould have
decreased by £39,290thousand.

Thefollowing tades summarize thiaformation relating to thedages for interest rate risk.

Decanber 31, 202

Notional
Amount

Line ltem in
Balance Shet

Carrying Amou nt
Asset Liability

Hedging Instruments Curr ency Maturi ty Forward Rate
Cash flow hede
Interest expensen NTD
long-term borrowings

- interest rate swap

2027.4.1-
2027.5.24

NTD 900000 1.39%-158% Financial asset®r hedging- $ $ 6932

current/liatiliti es for
hedging - nonrcurrent

The abovenenioned hedging instruments appliedhedge accounting.e book value of bier
equity for each ledgng item (nteed expenseon longterm borrowings was $6,932)
thousau.

For the year ested December 3202

Hedging Gain
(Loss
Recognized in
Other
Comprehensve
Comprehensive Income Income
Cash fow hedge
Interest expensen longterm barowings

$ (6,932

Note: Increasedinancecosts or other losses
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c) Other pice risk

The Company was exposed to fueicp risk on is purchase of aviatn fuel The Conpany
enersinto fueloptionscontractsandswap contratsto hedge gaing adverse isks onfuel price

changes.

Decembe3l, 202

Notional Line ltemin Carrying Amount
Hedging Instrument Currency Amount Matu rity Forward Rate Balance Steet Asst Liability
Cashflow hedges UsD NTD7,094 2023.3.3% USD60 Financial assts forhedging- $ 38,997 $ 46,091
Aviation fuel - fuel 2023.12.31 usD148 current/liabilities for
options hedging- current
Cashflow hedyes uUsbD NTD9,667 2023.3.31 USD96 Financial assts fa hedgirg - 9,667

Aviation fuel - swap currer
edging- cument

current/liabilities for

Hedge accounting is continued to be applied to the abovenmentibedging instrumés. The
carrying amount of other equity for eachhedging item (fuel paymis in U.S. dollarg was

$(16,767) thousand.

For theyear ended Deember 31,202

Hedging Gain Amount
(Los9 Reclasified to
Recognizedn  Profit and Loss
Other and the
Comprehensve Adjusted Line
Comprehensive Incone Income Item
Cash flow hede
Aviation fuel $(22,885 $ 88,80 (Note)
Note: Increase iroperating costs.
DecembeB1, 2021
Notional Line Itemin Carrying Amou nt
Hedging Instrument Currency Amount Maturity Forward Rate Balance Sheet Asset Liabil ity
Cashflow hedgs uUsD NTD6,124 2022.1.31 USD62- Financial assts for kedging- $ 17,613 $ 2,755
Aviation fuel - fuel 2022.09.8 USD121.75 current/liabiliti es for
options hedgng - current

Hedge accounting is continued te appled to the aboveménned hedgng instrumentsThe
carrying amountof other equity for eachhedging item (fuel paymentin U.S. dollarg was

$6,124thousad.

For theyear endedecenber 31, 2@1

Hedging Gain
(Loss
Recognzedin
Other
Comprehensive
Comprehersivelncome Income
Cash flow hedge
Aviation fuel $ 6,124
Note: Increasem opeiting costs
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2)

3)

Senstivity analysis

The sensitivity adysis belowwas detemined baed on the xposuee to fuel price risks at the
endof thereporting period.

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Other Other
Comprehensive Comprehensive
Pre-tax Profit Income Pre-tax Profit Income
Increase Increase Increase Increase
(Decrea®) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease)

Fuel price increase 5% $ 3,624 $ 838 $ - $ 306
Fuel priee decrease 5% (7,069 (839 - (306

Credt risk

Credit riskrefers to the risk thea countemparty will default on its contactual obligations reaulting
in a financial loss to the Company.hé Compay 6 s ¢ r peirdarily comes ok accounts
receivable geneated fromoperaing activities, bank cepasits generatedrom investing activits,
fixed incomeinvestmets and othefinarcial instruments. Operation relatel credit risk and financial
credit isk are managed separately.

Operaion - relaed credit risk

The Compay hasestablisled proceduresto manageoperaion related credit risko mantain the
qudity of accounts reeivable.

To asess therisk of individual customers, the Compangnsider into tk financial conditia of the
customersthe credit ratirg agencyrating, the Comanyé internd credit rating,transaction history
andcurrent economic conditios andmany oher factors thatmay affed the repaymet. Sometimes,
the Company ses certain codit enhancement tosto redge the crdit risk of spedic custaners.

Since thecustomas of the aviation industry are dispersed anchon-relaied, the credit sk
concentrabn is not criticd.

Financial creditrisk

Credit risk on bank dmsits, fixed incomeinvestmets and other fnancial nstuments are
measured ad monibredby the Compan y nence departmen. T h e  Qountppartieyaidds
other partiesare wellperforming banks andfinancial institutions corporations, and governmte
agencies, and sbe risk of cainterpaiies failingto discharge armbligation is low; therebre, there

is no significant cedit risk.

Endorsemets given by the Company obehalf of its sutsidiaries ca befoundin Note 30(g.
Liquidity risk
The djective of the Compay 6 s manoéligudityds to maintain cash ad cash quivalents

sufficient for opeating purposesmarketable securitiesith high liquidity and loancommitmens
thatare sufficiert to ensure that theCompany has adequate finaaidiexibility.
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Liquidity and inerest ri& rate take

The followingtable slows theremainirg contractual maurity analysiso f t he Contglany 6

liabilities with agred-upon repgment periods, whch were based on the dte the Company may be
requred to pay the firstapayment anfinancial liabiliti esis evaluated beed on ndiscounted cash
flows, including cash flows ointerest and principal

Bank loans with a repayent on demand clause are included in the second damn of the table
below regadless of whether onot the bankswould cloose to egrcise early theirrights b
repayment. Themaurity daes for other norderivative financial khlities were based on the
agreedupan repgyment dates.The Company 6 s lyi agalysisd fort its derivate financial
instrumens is also sbwn in the following teble. The tablewas basé on thke undiscanted
contradual net cash inbws and outflows on dersative instruments thatedtle on ane basis, and
theundscounted gross cdsinflows and outflows on thse derivatives thaequire grossettlemeat.
When he anount payableor receiable isnot fixed, the anountdisclosed has ®n determined by
referance o the projected interst rates asllustrated by yéld curves at the end bthe reporting
period.

Deember 31, 202

The Weighted
Average
Effective
Interest Rate Less than 1
(%) Year 1to 5 Yeas Over 5 Years
Lease liabilities 1.8249 $ 1,240,819 $ 3,437,28 $ 9,359,610
Floating interestrate
liabiliti es 1.5609 12,802,49 47,991,005 9,796,52
Hedginginstrunens 2.830 11,5984 27,4%,159 7480222
Bonds pyabe 1.0465 2,454,645 7,729,726 -
$ 27,523,915 $ 86613,188 $ 26,636,374
Decembe 31, 2021
The Weighted
Average
Effective
Interest Rate Lessthan 1
(%) Year 1to5 Years Over 5 Yeas
Lea liabilities 1.6254 $ 892433 $ 2397555 $ 9,732,481
Floating irterest rate
liabilities 0.8719 9,093,638 66,908,245 11,061,580
Hedgirg instrumerts 29022 9,375,841 28,118,375 1,532,555
Bonds payald 1.4686 2,740,146 12303091 -

$ 22102,08 $109,327,266 $ 22326,616
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Loan @omnitments

December 31

2022 2021

Undrawnbank lancommitmens (unseured) $ 22,455,000 $ 24]164,00

30. TRANSACTIONS WITH REL ATED PARTIE S

Besidesinformationdisclosd elsewheran the oter ndes, details oftrans&tions between tre Compary
ard otherrelated paies are discloseds follows

a. Related pay nameand rehtionship

Related Party Name

Relationship with the Company

TaiwanAircargo Terminal Company
Taoyuaninterndgiond Airport Service Co. Ltd.
Sébre Travel Netwok (Taiwan), Ltd.

Taiwan Airport Serice Co., Ltd.

Taiwan AirportService (Sama)

Dynagy Aerotechintemationd Corp.

Global Sky Express

MandarinAirlin es

CAL Park

CAL Hotel Co., Ld.

CAL -Asia Investment

CAL-Dynasty Intenationallnc.

Tigerair Taiwan Co, Ltd.

TaiwanAircraft Mairtenarceand EngneeringCo., Ltd.
Kaohsiung Caering Services

China Aircraft Senice

Airport Air Cargo Ternma (Xiamen) Co.,Ltd.
Airport Air Cargo Service (Xiamen) Co., Ltd.
Easem United hterretiond Logistics (Hong Kom)
DynastyHolidays, hc.

China Pacific Catering Services
ChinaPacificLaurdry Senices

NORDAM AsialLtd.

Delica Intern#dional Co., Ltd.

ChinaAviation Developmat Foundaion (CADF)

Others
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Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiay

Subsdiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiay

Subsidiary

Subsdiary

Subsidiay

Subsidary

Subsidiay

Subsidiay

Associak (beame not related party since
March 2022

Assciate

Associde

Associate

Associde

Joint venture

Joint verture

Joint venture

Joint ventire

Director of the Compay and major
shareholder

Director, key management personnel,
chairman genea manger ofthe
Company, spouse ard seconddegee
relative



. Opeating ncome

For the Year Ended December31

Acoount Items Related Paty Type 2022 2021
Other hcome Subsidiay $ 837092 $ 211,470
Major shaeholder of the Compay $ 9,131 $ 12,634
Associate $ - $ 56
Joint verure $ 46,80l $ 20,365
Purchases

For the Year Ended December 3

Related Party Type 2022 2021
Subsidiary $ 2,845,455 $ 2,860,980
Major shaeholder of the Company $ 18,972 $ 28574
Asscriate $ 41561 $ 536,086
Joint verture $ 66582 $ 221802

. Accouns recévable- related pdies (generated bgperations)

December 31

Related Party Type 2022 2021
Subsidiary $ 125,829 $ 52,126
Joint verture 3,84 1,563
Major shaeholderof the Comjany 1,045 785

$ 130678 $ 54474
The receivales are not garanteed, and there no allowance for doubtful accounts related ¢toocains
reeivable- related paies. The paymen periods of such accounts were withn 30 to 90days, ad there
are no ovedue paynents.

. Accourts myable- related paits (generattby operations)

December 31
Related Party Type 2022 2021
Subsiary $ 412618 $ 603265
Assodate 39491 68826
Joint venture 275,88 59,930
Major shareholder othe Company 2,421 1,816

$ 730428 $ 733837
The remaimg balance o&ccounts payablerelated partie will bepaid in cash if they e notsecued.
Leas arargemants (operding leases)
The Companyrented out phnes to Manarin Airlines underan ogerding leasecontract. The monthly

rental received ishased on flight hourd-or the years endeBecenber 31, 2022 and 2021the rentts
recevedamouwntedto $323448thousand and$606176 thousandrespetively.
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Under anoperatng lease agement the Company rented flipt training machines and dlnt simdators
from China Aviation Development Foundatito trmin pilots. The Company @id therertal baseal on
usagehours. For the years endeDecemter 31,2022 and2021, the @mpanypaid renta$ of $18,972
thousand an28574 thousand, respectively.

In March2010, the Compay signed a yearly renewable ogtngleas agreement to usedlOperting
and Aviation Headquarters building of the Taiwan Tayuan Irternational Airport with @L Pak. For
the years endedDecember 312022 and 2021the Company paid rersaof $31,288thousand and
$215,098thousandrespectiely.

g. Endorsements @guaratees

Deember 31
2022 2021

Amount Amount Amount Amount

Endorsed Utilized Endorsed Utilized
TheCompany
CAL Park $ 3,850,00 $ 1,444200 $ 3,850,000 $ 1,663,320
TigerairTaiwan 2,868,466 286,22 2,590,360 258,454
Tawan Air Craft Maintenarce

and Ehgineering Co., Ltd 2,000,000 1,517000 2,000,000 1,459,000

h. Remuneratiomf key mangement personnel

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Shot-term empbyeebenefits $ 59047 $ 42,093
Postemploymenbenefis 13,503 42,123

$ 72550 $ 84216

The remuneradn of directos ard key executivesas determined by the remunépat comnittee is
based orthe perfornance ofindividuals and market trends.
31. ASSETSPLEDGED AS COLLATERAL FOR SECURITY

The following asstswerepledgeal or mortgaged as collateral fdong-term kark loans, leaséabilities and
business transactions

Deember 31
2022 2021
Property plant ard equipment $ 30,892,531 $ 27,994,738
Right-of-use asseat 52,637,480 50,965378
Resticted Assets 62598 -

$ 83592609 $ 78,960,561

-68-



32. SIGNIFICAN T COMMITMENTS A ND CONTINGENT LIABILI TIES

In addtion to those dislosedin the other nates, significant conmitments and contingen liabilities of the
Compary at Decemébr 31,2022 wereas follows:

a. In October 2019, the Company sigha contrat with Airbus S.AS. to mrchase aven A321ne
aircraft and aroption to puchase fve A321reo arcraf. The totd list pice of the elevenaircraft is
US$1,676,413 htousand, ah the list price of the opon to purchase five aircraft is US$7&22
thousadl. The expcted e@livery peliods ofthe eleveraircraft are fran 224 to 206. As of Decanber
31,2022, thelist price hadbeen paidin theamount of US$5,207 thousad (recognied asprepayments
for airaaft). In October 2019, the Company sighe@ contrat with Internatimal Aero Engines
Company to prchase four baalp engines of A321neo. The tota list piice of the four engnes is
US$60,289thousand As of December 312022, two backup engine hadeenddivered, for details
please refeto Notel9.

b. In July and August 201%e Companysigned a cotract withBoeing Companyto purchasethree 77F
aircratt andexerdsedthe option to purchas three 777F aircrafin January2022, the Companysigned
an additimal contract vith Boeng Conpany to purchasanoher four 777F aircaft. The expected
delivery periads ae from 2023 to 2024 The taal list price of the ten aircraft is $43,905142thousard.
As of Decembe 31, 2022, five out of ten aircraft hae been délrered The total list price of the
remainingfive aircraft is US$,019,932thousandand the list price has been paid in tre anount of
US#$03,986thousand (recognized psepymentsfor aircrdt).

c. On September 282022 the Company signed a contracithwBoeing Company to puhase sixteen
787-9 aircraft and themion to purchaseight 7879 aircraft.The totdlist price of thesixteen @craftis
US$5,88,695 thasand, andhe list price of the ofilon to purchase eight aircraft is US$3,039,894
thousad. The sixteen aircratixpected delivery periods are from 30@ 2027 As of December 31,
2022, theibt price has beengid in the amoub of US$117,374 housand @cognized aprepaynents
for aircrdt). The optionto purchase eight aircrafixpected dévery periods are from 202 2028. As
of December 31, 2@ the list price has beeaid in the amount diS$18240 thouand(recognizzdas
prepaymerd for aircraft)

33. IMPACT OF COVID-19

For the yeas endedDecember 31, 2022 and 202, due to the mpact ofthe COVID-19 pandemicthe
Company receivedubsides of $1,072,259thousand and $1,425,517thousand, egectively, for airport
landng fees arnd parking fees, at. The subsides for housingard land renal, and sabry and interest
expensavere$590,729thousand an#933,4% thousad, respectivgl. These shsidies wereecognized as
othe income ordeductons from other expernses

The Company ha obtained relief loanfrom the gavernment. Refeto Notel7 for detailson theamount of
loan and i alocaion.
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34. SIGNIFICANT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES D ENOMINA TED IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES
Thefollowing information was agyregatedby the foreign currences aher than functioral currencesof the
Company and the exchange rate between foreign currencieand respetive functional arrencies wre
disclosed. The signifantassets antiabilities derominated in foreigrcurrencieswereasfoll ows:

(In Thousands d Foreign Currencies)

Decemker31, 202
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Foreign Carrying
Currency Exchange Rate Amount
Financial assets
Monetary items
UsD $ 993035 30.6748 $ 30461150
EUR 41,723 32.789 1,367,968
HKD 300,543 3.936 1,183,719
JPY 4,249,564 0.2317 984623
RMB 470306 44131 2,075,507
Financial lidilities
Moneary items
uUsD 1,977,467 30.648 60,658405
EUR 6,849 32.71869 224,%7
HKD 48,231 3.9386 189963
JPY 2,989,197 0.2317 692,597
RMB 107880 4.4131 476085
December 31, 2021
Foreign Carrying
Currency Exchange Rate Amount
Financal assets
Monefry iterns
uUsD $ 1,067,289 27.7008 $ 29564749
EUR 24,699 31.4465 776,692
HKD 545975 3.5499 1,938155
JPY 4,949,258 0.240r 1,191,286
RMB 751761 4.3459 3,267,076
Financial lidilities
Monetary items
uUsD 1,846834 27.7008 51158,7%
EUR 3,724 31.4465 117113
HKD 65,519 3.5499 232587
JPY 2,806,634 0.2407 675,557
RMB 107893 4.3459 468,24



For the years ended Decemb®1,2022 and2021, the Comanyd s net f o rgainsgossesdvere h a n
$1,517,582thousand ath $(123,67) thousand, respectively. It is imactical to disclose neforeign
exchange gains (losses)ybeach significat foreign currercy due to the varietyof the foreign currercy
transactions.

35. ADDITIONAL DISCLOS URES

a. Following ae theadditioral disclosues rguired by the Securities anditares Bureau for the @many
anditsinvestees:

1) Financing providedo ahers Table 1 (atached).
2) Endorsemats/guaanees provided: Table 2 (attached).
3) Marketable seurities held Table 3 (attehed).

4) Marketable securities acquired adisposed of at costs pricesof atleag NT$300 millionor 20%
of the @id-in cgpital: None

5) Acquisitions of individud red estatesat costsof at leas NT$100 million or 20% of the paidin
capital: None.

6) Dispos#s of individual real estateat pricesof at least NT$100 milion or 20% of the paidn
capital: None.

7) Total puichases from osales taelatal parties amounting to at least NT$100 miion or 20% ofthe
paid-in capital: Tablet (atteched).

8) Reivables from related partiemmountingto at least NT$100 million or 20% of the paidn
capital: Table 5 (attached).

9)Names, lgations, and rdated irformaion of investees over whichhe Compay exerciss
significant influence: Tald 6 (attacted).

10) Trading in derivative isgruments Notes 7 and 29
b. Information on hvestmerdgin mainland China: Table7 (attached).

c. Informationof maja shareblders: Table8 (attached).

36. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Canpany manly engagesn air trangortaion services for passengergrgo and thers. Tke mgor
revenuegenerating asset iss aircraft fleet, whichis jointly usedfor passengeand cago servces. Thus,
theCo mp a ny 0 s rtableskegmentis dight sgment. Forthe disclosre of operating segmentin the
consolidatedfinancial satements, theeporteble segmenof the Group comprises flight and non-light
business departmentghe relded infamation of reportable segmentds beendisclosedin the conslidated
financial staements.
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CHINA AIRLINES, LTD. AND SU BSIDIARIES

FINANCING PROVIDED TO OTHERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)

TABLE 1

. . ) . Collateral Financing
Financial Related Highest Ending Actual Interest Rate | Nature of Busme_ss Reasons for AIIowgnce for Limit for Aggregate
No. Lender Borrower Statement Part Balancefor Balance Amount (%) Financin Transaction | Short-term Impairment ltem Value Each Financing Note
Account y the Period Borrowed 9 Amount Financing Loss Limit
Borrower
1 |CalDynasty InternationgDynasty Hotel of |Notes receivable| Yes $ 112,903 | $ 107,362 | $ 107,362 2.25 Shortterm $ - |Operating $ - $ $ 157,028 | $ 314056
Hawaii, Inc. financing cycle capital
facility is expenditire
necessary

Note 1: The maximum amount of loans to others by@uwenpany is up to 40% of the Company's net worth as stated in its latest financial statements.

Note 2: The maximum amount of loans to aniwidual counterparty by the Comparsyup to 20% of the Company's net worth as stated in its latest financialestegem
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TABLE 2

CHINA AIRLINES, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ENDORSEMENT/GUARANTEE PROVIDED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(In Thousands & New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated @erwise)

Endorsee/Guarantee Ratio of
Limit on Maximum Outstanding Accumulated Aggregate Endorsement/ | Endorsement/ | Endorsement/
Endorsement Amount Amount Endorsement
Endorsement Endorsement Guarantee Guarantee Guarantee
Endorsor/ Guarantee Endorsed Actual Amount Endorsed Guarantee to . . :
No. . . : Guarantee at S Guarantee |Givenby Parernt Given by Given on Behalf
Guarantor Name Relationship Given on Behalff Guaranteed Borrowed Guaranteed by | Net Equity in . N o
: the Endof the ; . Limit on Behalf of | Subsidiaries on|of Companies in
of Each Party During the : Collateral Latest Financial e ; ;
: Period (Note 2) Subsidiaries |Behalf of ParentMainland China
(Note 1) Period Statements
(%)
0 |China Airlines CAL Park 100% owred subsidiay $ 14,000,040 | $ 3,8%0,000 | $ 3,850,000 | $ 1,444,200 | $ - 5.50 $ 35,000,100 Yes No No
(t he f CdTigerair Taiwan Co., Ltd. 82.27% owned subsidiary 14,000,040 3,016,516 2,868,466 286,202 - 4.10 35,000,100 Yes No No
by direct and indirect
holdings
Taiwan Aircraft Maintenance [100% owned subsidiary 14,000,040 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,517,000 - 2.86 35,000,100 Yes No No
and Engineering Co., Ltd.
Notel: Based on t he IliGes,ithp maximénsamguofigehmnte t o an i ndividual counterparty is up to 20% of the Companyés sharehol dersd equit
Note2: Based on t he Compadnybnsa bd wei dagglgirreegsa,t et memount of <col | at eldearls 6g leaqruantyee is up to 50% of the Companyds shareh
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CHINA AIR LINES, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD
DECEMBER 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Statl Otherwise)

TABLE 3

December 312022

Relationship
Holding Company Name Type and Name of Marketable Securities with th e Holding Financial StatementAccount Number of Carrying Percentag_e ol . Note
: Ownership Fair Value
Company Shares/Units Amount (%)
China Airlines ( fiShares
Everest Investment Holdings Ltdordinary shares - Financial assets at FVTOEChon-current 16,724 $ 20,818 13.59 $ 22,900 |Notel
Everest Investment Holdings Ltdpreferredshares - Financial assets at FVTOEChon-current 1,672 2,082 - - -
Chung Hua Express Co. - Financial assstat FVTOCI - non-current 1,100,000 41,128 11.00 41,128 -
China Aircraft Service.imited - Financial assets at FVTOChon-current 28,400,000 - 4.00 - -
The Grand Hi Lai Hotel - Financial assets at FVTRIcurrent 1,072 - 0.00 - -
Mandarin Airlines Shares
China Airlines Parent company|Financial assets at FVTOC€hon-current 2,074,628 39,418 - 39,418 -
CalAsia Investment Shares
Taikoo (Xiamen) Landing Gear Services - Financial assets aMTPL - current - - 2.59 - |Note2
Taikoo Spirit Aerospace Systems (Jinjiang) Composits - Financial assets at FVTOEhon-current - 59,004 5.45 59,004 |Note 2
Sabre Travel Network (Taiwan) Beneficiary certificates
FSITC Morey Market Fund - Financialassets aVTPL - current 95,673 17,322 - 17,322 -
Taiwan Airport Services Shares
TransAsia Airways - Financial assets at FVTRIlcurrent 2,277,786 - 0.40 - -
Kaohsiung Catering Services Beneficiary certificates
Prudential Financial Money Market Fund - Financial assets at FVTRlcurrent 3,163,289 50,823 - 50,823 -
Taishin 1699 Money Market Fund - Financial assets at FVTRIcurrent 3,728,020 51,317 - 51,317 -

Note I Thes ub s i di asetyaluswa$2e,900tteousand, which included ordinary shares and preference shares as of Dece2hi22 31,

Note 2: Thecompany does not issue shares because it is a limited company.

Note 3: The table only lists fiancial aset thatare in accordanceith IFRS 9.
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TABLE 4

CHINA AIRLINES, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

TOTAL PURCHASES FROM OR SALES TO RELATED PARTIES A MOUNTING TO AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID -IN CAPITAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(In Thousands d New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes/AcIt::)ountsl Receivabl
Company Name Related Party Relationship (Payablg Note
Purchase/ % of o , % of
Amount Payment Termg Unit Price  |Payment Terms|Ending Baance
Sale Total Total

China Airlines, Ltd. Dynasty Aerotech International Corp. |Subsidiary Purchase $ 359,440 0.28 |2 months $ - - $ (50,760 (2.76) -
(AChi na Ai |CAL Park Subsidiary Purchase 231,317 0.18 |2 months - - - - -
Cal Hotel Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Purchase 167,382 0.13 |2 months - - (9,07) (0.49) -

Mandarin Airlines Subsidiary Sale (271,089 (0.19) |2 months - - 79,578 0.70 -

Taiwan Air Cargo Terminal Subsidiary Purchase 595081 0.46 (30 cays - - (41,5823 (2.26) -

Taoyuan International Airport Service |Subsidiary Purchase 1,098,923 0.86 |40 days - - (208,532 | (11.33) -

Global Sky Express Subsidiary Sale (180,596 (0.13) |15 days - - 4,690 0.04 -

Tigerair Tawan Co,, Ltd. Subsidiary Sale (251,361} (0.18) |1 month - - 28,979 0.25 -

Taiwan Aircraft Maintenance and Subsidiary Purchase 243,593 0.19 |1 month - - (21,529 (2.17) -

Engineering Co., Ltd.

EasterriUnited International Lgistics Equity-method investee Purchae 401,256 0.31 |2 months - - (38,679 (2.10) -

China Pacific Catering Services Equity-method investee Purchase 562,323 0.44 |90 days - - (254,61) | (13.84) -

Mandarin Airlines TigerairTaiwan Co, Ltd. Same parent company Purchase 488,496 11.52 |1 month - - (54,647 (9.95 -
Taiwan Airport Services Same parent company Purchase 203,487 4.80 |1 month - - (14,460 (2.63 -

Cal Hotel CAL Park Same parent copany Purchase 114,295 62.50 |1 monh - - - - -
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CHINA AIRLINES, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID

DECEMBER 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New TaiwanDollars, Unless Stated Othevise)

-IN CAPITAL

TABLE 5

Company Name

Related Party

Relationship

Ending Balance

Turnover Rate

Overdue

Amounts Received
in Subsequent

Allowance for

Amount Action Taken Period Impairment Loss
China Pacific Catering Séces China Airlines Parent company $ 254,611 3.61 $ - $ 150,554 $ -
Taoyuan International Airport Service China Airlines Parent company 208,532 4.78 - 208,532 -
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CHINA AIRLINES,

LTD. AND SUBSIDIARI

INFORM ATI ON ON INVESTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)

ES

TABLE 6

Original Investment Amount As of December 312022 Net Income Shareof Profit
Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Busines®sand Products December 31,| December 31, Number of % Carrying (Losg of the (Loss) Note
2022 2021 Shares Amount Investee
China Airlines,Ltd. CAL Park Taoyuan, Taiwan Real estate lease and international trade $ 1,500,000 | $ 1,500,@m0 151,546,405 | 100.00 $ 1,728,454 | $ 32,106 | $ 72,287 |Note 4
Mandarin Airlines Taipei, Taiwan Air transportation and maintenance of aircraft 4,030,140 4,039,140 | 387,831,234 96.96 1,196,733 (649,723 (631,63) |Notes land 4
Taiwan Air Cargo Terminal Taoyuan, Taiwan Air cargo and storage 1,350,000 1,350,000 135,000,000 54.00 1,790,921 656,496 354,620 |Note 4
CalDynasty Internatioal Los Angeles, USA A holding company, real estate and hotel servicey US$ 26,145 US$ 26,145 2,614500 100.00 1,359,724 62,842 62,559 [Notes2 and 4
China Pacific Catering Services Taoyuan, Taiwan In-flight catering 439,110 439,110 43,911,000 51.00 448,222 (204,628 (104,360 -
Taoyuan Internaional Airport Services |Taoyuan, Taiwan Airport services 147,000 147,000 34,300,000 49.00 424,527 (528,05) (258,745 -
Cal-Asia Investmat Territory of theBritish Virgin Islands |General investment Us$ 7,172 | US$ 7,172 7,172,346 | 100.00 617,106 42,06 42,006 -
Sabre Travel Network (Taiwan) Taipei, Taiwan Sale and maintenance of hardware and software 52,200 52,200 13,021,042 93.93 185,935 (20,573 (9,93) -
China Aircraft Service Hong Konginternatond Airport Airport servies HK$ 58,000 | HK$ 58,000 28,400,000 4.00 - (42,609 - [Note 6
Taiwan Airport Services Taipei, Taiwan Airport senices 12,289 12,289 20,626,644 47.35 102,745 (130,157 (61,629 -
Kaohsiung @teaing Services Kaohsiung,Taiwan In-flight catering 383,846 383,846 21,494,637 53.67 349,489 (54,179 (33,313 |Note 5
Cal Hotel Co., Itd. Taoyuan, Taiwan Hotel business 465,000 465,000 33,480,000 | 100.00 304,948 (31,1®) (30,299 |Note 4
China Pacific Laundry Services Taoyuan, Taiwan Cleaning and leasing of the towel of airlines, hote 137,500 137,5@ 13,750,000 55.00 92,684 (48,966 (26,932 -
restaurants and health clubs
DynastyAerotechinternational Corp. |Taoyuan Taiwan Cleaning of aircraft and maintenance of machine 77,270 77,270 77,270 | 100.00 144,523 33,859 33,854 |Note 4
equipment
Dynagy Holidays Tokyo, Japan Travel business JPY 8,000 | JPY 8,000 160 20.00 - - - -
Global Sky Express Taipei, Taiwan Forwarding and storage of air cargo 2,500 2,500 250,000 25.00 8,256 10,305 2,576 -
Tigerair Taiwan Co.L.td. Taipei, Taiwan Air transportation and maintenance of aiftra 5,640,197 5,640,197 313,81,656 78.41 725,747 (2,849,792 (2,234,43% |Note 4
Taiwan Aircraft Maintenance and Taoyuan, Taiwan Aircraft maintenance 1,350,000 1,350,000 56,000,000 | 100.00 451,322 (106,596 (106,5%) -
Engineering Co., Ltd.
NORDAM Asia Ltd. Taoyuan, Taiwan Composite repair and manufacturing business 37,975 37,975 3,797,500 49.00 19,196 (19,673 (9,639 -
Mandarin Airlines Tigerair Taiwan Co., Ltd. Taipei, Taiwan Air transporation andmaintenance of egraft 154,330 154,330 15,433,000 3.86 35,711 (2,849,792 (109,952 -
Taiwan Airport Services Taipei, Taiwan Airport services 11,668 11,658 469,755 1.08 2,337 (130,15% (1,402 -
CAL-Asia Investment  |Eastern United International Logistics {Hong Kong Forwarding and storage of air cargo HK$ 3,329 HK$ 3,329 1,050,000 35.00 57,188 43,207 12,572 -
Taiwan Airport Services |Taiwan Airport Servie (Samoa) Sanoa Airport services aghinvestment UsS$ 5,877 UsS$ 5,877 - 100.00 440,445 6,306 27,820 [Note 3
Kaohsiung Catering Delica InternationaCo., Ltd. Kaohsiung, Taiwan Catering business 10,200 10,200 1,020,000 5100 7,534 - - -
Services

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note5:

Note 6

Thedifference is due to acquisition.

Adopted the treasursharemethod in recognizing investment income or loss.

Thecompary does not issughares because it is a limited company.

The difference is due to lease arrangement between consolidated entities.

The Conpanylost signficant influence oer it during the gar.

Represents the consolidated finanaidrmation of the foreign holding company disclosed in accordance il Fegudtions.
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CHINA AIRLINES, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INFORMATION ON INVESTMENTS IN MAINLAND CHINA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)

TABLE 7

China Airlines

Accumulated Remittance of Funds Accumulated Accumulated
Outward Outward . Carrying i
. . % Ownership Repatriation of
. . Remittance for Remittance for| Net Income : Amount
Main Businesses an( _.. , . , Method of of Direct or Investment Investment
Investee Canpany Products Paid-in Capital investment Investment Outward Inward Investment (Loss) of Indirect Gain (Loss) as of Income as of
from Taiwan as from Taiwan as| the Investee December 31,
Investment December 31,
of January 1, of December31, 2022 2022
2022 2022
Airport Air Cargo Terminal |Forwarding and stora¢ $ 1,123,036| Indirect | $ 128,404 -1 $ $ 128404 | $ 92,616 14.00 $ 10,542 | $ 246,704 | $ 108,483
(Xiamen) Co., Ltd. of air cargo (RMB 254,480| (Note 1) | (US$ 4,186 (US$ 4,189 | (RMB 20,987 (RMB 2,5%63)| (RMB 55,903 | (US$ 3,537
(Note 2)
Airport Air Cargo Service |Forwarding and stora 61,783 | Indirect 59,737 - 59,737 113,52 14.00 14,292 142,128 47,869
(Xiamen) Co., Ltd. of air cargo (RMB 14,00)| (Notel) |(US$ 1,949 (US$ 1,949 | (RMB 25,729 (RMB 3,270 | (RMB 32,20 | (US$ 1,56)
(Note 2)
Taikoo (Xiamen) Landing |Landing gear 2,548,773| Indirect 65,988 - 65,988 - 2.59 - - -
Gear Services maintenance servic| (US$ 83,090| (Notel) | (US$ 2,15) (Uss 2,15)
Taikoo Spirit Aerospace Composite material 357,761 | Indirect 19,509 - 19,509 - 5.45 - 59,004 10,936
Systems (Jinjiang) (US$ 11,663 | (Notel) | (US$ 636) (US$ 636) (RMB 13,370 | (US$ 357
Accumulated O.utwar_d Remittance Investment Amount Upper Limit on t he Amount of
for Investment in Mainland China hori .
as of Aut orlzed_by.the Investment Investments StIpL.,IlaFed ly the
December 312022 Commission, MOEA Investment Commission, MOEA
$273,639 $663,432 $43,472,065
(US$8,920) (Note 3) (Note 4)
(Continued)
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Taiwan Airport Services

Accumulated

Remittance of Funds

Accumulated

Accumulated

Outward Outward 0 . . i
Main Businesses and Method of Remittance for Remittance for| - NetIncome /Oofo DV\ilrneirtSQ:p Investment Aggﬂmgi of R?ﬁ?égﬁrﬂzﬂtm
Investee Company Paid-in Capital Investment Investment (Loss) of the . .
Products Investment . Outward Inward . Indire ct Gain (Loss) | December 31,| Income as of
from Taiwan as from Taiwan as Investee
Investment 2022 December 31,
of January 1, of Decembe 31, 2022
2022 2022
Airport Air Cargo Terminal |Forwarding and stogeet $ 1,123,036 Indirect | $ 123,262 $ $ 123,262| $ 92,616 14.00 $ 12,966 | $ 272,01 | $ 139,299
(Xiamen) Co., Ltd. of air cargp (RMB 254,480 | (Note5) | (US$ 4,018 (US$ 4,018 | (RMB 20,987 (RMB 2,750 | (RMB 61,638| (US$ 4,54)
Airport Air CargoService |Forwarding and storag 61,783 | Indirect 59,103 59,103 113,52 14.00 15,893 167,577 64,166
(Xiamen) Co.Ltd. of air cargo (RMB 14,00Q0| (Noteb5) |(US$ 1,929 (US$ 1,929 | (RMB 25,729 (RMB 3,552 | (RMB 37,973 | (US$ 2,092

Accumulated Outward Remittance for
Investment in Mainland China as of
December 312022

Investment Amounts Authorized by the
Investment Commission,MOEA

Upper Limit on the Amount of
Investment Stipulated by
Investment Canmission, MOEA

$182,3®

(US$5,945)

$182,365

(US$5,945)

$130,195

(Note 4)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4.

Note 5:

Note6:

The limit stated in the Investment Commissio su Ir &tgi o n

AnThe

The amount comprised US$19,828,3R¥1B4,200,000 and NT$36,666,667

The Company invested in CAAsia Investment, which invested in a company locateddimlard China.

As of December 312022 the inward remittarecof earmgs amountd to US$3,536,56and US$1,560,538
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Taiwan Airport Services invested in Taiwan Airport Servicganioa)which invested in a company located in mainland China.

The RMBand U.S. @llar amounts ofissets are converted at perautrates and the gains (losses) are converted at the average of theepdriates for the reporting period.
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TABLE 8

CHINA AIRLINES, LTD.

INFORMATION OF MAJOR SHAREH OLDERS
DECEMBER 31,2022

Shares
Name of Mgor Shareholder Number of Percentage of
Shares Ownership (%)

China Aviation Development Foundation (CADF) 1,867,341,935 31.05
Natioral Devdopment Fund (NDF) 519,750,519 8.64
Note 1: Theinformation ofmgor sharéolders presentkin this table is provided by the Taiwan Depository &

Note 2:

Clearing Corporation based on the number of ordinary shares and preference shares held b
shardnolderswith ownership of 5% or greater, that have been issudtbw physicalregistraton
(including teasury shares) by the Company as of the last business day for the current quarter. The
share capital in the consolidated financial statements magr difimthe actual number of shares that
have been issued withbphysical regstration beause of differat preparation basis.

If a shareholder delivers the shareholdings to the trust, the above informvdtiba disclosed by the
individual truster who opened the trust account. For shareholders who declarerissidrehlolings

with ownership grear than 10% in accordance with the Security and Exchange Act, the
shareholdings include shares held by shadshel and those delivered to the truserowhich
shareholders have rights to determine the use of trusegyog-orinformation relating to inger
shareholding declaration, please refer to Market Observation Post System.
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